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The John Lewis Partnership

The John Lews Partnership 1s one of the UK’s top ten retail businesses with 28 John Lews
department stores, 4 John Lews at home stores, johnlewis com, 235 Wartrose supermarkets,

15 Waitrose convenience stores, waitrose com and business to business contracts 1n the UK and
abroad

It1s also the country’s largest employee co-owned business, with 76,500 employees The Partnership
aims to ensure that everyone who works for 1t enjoys the expernience of ownership, by sharnng

n the profits, by having access to information and by sharing i decision making through
influencing and making recommendations to the Chairman on any subject

The Partnership believes that the commitment of Partners to the business is a unique source
of compettive advantage which has underpinned over 80 years of growth and a reputation
amongst customers and supphliers unparalleled 1n the UK retail industry

The company’s record of performance testifies to the robustness of the vision of its founder,
John Spedan Lews, to create a company dedicated to the happiness of the staff through their
worthwhile and sausfying employment in a successful business

John Lewss Partnership plc and 1ts subsidiary John Lews ple have small 1ssues of preference
stock which have first claim on the profits The whole of the remaming profit 1s available to be
used for the benefit of the business and the Partners The share of profits allocated to Parmers,
the Partnership bonus, 1s fixed each year by the Partnership Board and 1s distributed as the same
percentage of gross annual pay for all Partners All Partners received an 18% bonus for 2010/11
as their share of profits at a total cost of £194 5m




The Charrman, Charlie Mayfirld
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Chairman’s statement

This was a year i which the Partnership achieved market-beating sales growth and dehvered
a healthy increase 1n profits despite the difficult economic backdrop This strong
performance 1s the result of our 76,500 Partners’ determinauon to give custormers the best
possible shopping experience We have renewed our commitment in both Waiwrese and John
Lew:s to improving the value we offer to customers, and broader ranges and innovauve
markeung have attracted more customers and boosted our market share

The Partnership has clearly established 1itself as a leader in muluchannel retaiing Our
nvestment over many years in johnlewis com and our growing presence in Waitrose Delver,
together wath our supply relanonship with OGcado, have hrought our offer to more people in
more parts of the country and these imtiatives have been at the forefront of our growth and
mnovatuon Waitrose has concentrated on attracting more new customers through invesung
1n value, mnnovative top-ter ranges, new space and new formats such as the convenmence trnal
stores We have made great progress this year in combining the John Lewis online operations
with 1ts shops to offer customers greater choice and flexibility which has been complemented
by an innovative product offer and improved accessibility through the “John Lewis at home™
trial format

The Partership 1s a long-term business, held in trust for the benefit of our Partners This has
given us, we believe, signmificant compentive advantage We've been able to accelerate our
investment during the recession creaung around 7,500 new Johs Where we have made
sigmuficant changes to the structure of our business, we have done so by engaging Partners
And, most important of all, our Partners have shown their commttment to continually
improving what we do every day In return we reward our Partners for their efforts — we
conunue to offer a non-contributory final salary pension to Partners with more than 3 years
service and our mam pension fund has moved inte surplus on a funding basis

The profits we make go to Parmers and to improving the business for the future and I am
delighted thar Partners receved a bonus of 18%, an average of more than 9 weeks’ pay

2011/12 Outlook

After 9 weeks, Partnership gross sales are 4 4% higher than last year Waitrose gross sales have
increased by 6 2% (2 3% like for hike) and John Lews gross sales are 1 1% higher than last
year {0 6% lower like for like)

We expect trading conditions to be more dafficult in 2011, as the VAT increase, nising
unemployment, and public sector spending cuts begin to have an impact on consumer
spending We are, however, encouraged that some parts of the British economy are improving
shghtly We are seeing some early signs that property developers are willing to mnvest in new
projects and developments and we expect further progress this year on our store expansion
pipeline

Qur co-ownership model allows us to take a longer-term view, which enabled us to contunue
to invest through the recession and the benefit of that has been clearly seen 1n our results
Despite the more challenging condiuons we expect in 2011, we are confident in the plans we
have in place We will conunue to strengthen the Partnership, invesung approximately £0 6bn
in the current year creaung around 4,300 new jobs and we will continue to give our
customers the value and service they demand

Charlie Mayfield
Charrman
7 Apnl 2011
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Business review

Review of performance

John Lewis Partnership
¢ Gross sales up £784 8m, 10 6%, to £8 21bn

* Group operaung profit up £41 3m, 10 6%, to £431 Om
» Profit before Partmership bonus and tax up £61 8m, 20 0%, to £367 9m
s Partnership bonus of £194 6m, 18% of salary (equal to more than 9 weeks’ pay)

Waitrose

e  Gross sales up £442 3m, 9 8%, to £4 97bn
¢ Likeforlike gross sales up 4 0% (food only, excludes petrol)
e Operaung profit up £8 1m, 3 0%, to £274 9m

John Lewis
* Gross sales up £342 5m, 11 9%, to £3 23bn

* Like-forhke gross sales up 10 0%, johnlewis com sales up £147 9m, 37 9%, to £538 2m

* Operaung profit up £36 5m, 22 2%, to £201 2m
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Five year record — years ended January

2011 2010 2009+ 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
Gross sales (including sale
or return sales and VAT) 8,206 3 74215 6,967 5 6,762 8 6,362 3
Revenue
Waitrose 4,689 9 4,317 2 3,940 1 3,737 2 3,497 3
John Lews 2,661 9 2,417 4 2,327 1 2,3150 2,188 9
Revenue 7,361.8 6,734 6 6,267 2 6,052 2 5,686 2
Operating profit™
Waltrose 2749 266 8 2145 2262 1706
John Lewis 201.2 1647 1459 197 5 169 3
Corporate and other® (45.1) (41 8) (37 1) (32 4) -
Operating profit 4310 3897 3233 3913 3399
Net finance costs 63 1) (831) 437 (11 5) (19 8)
Share of post tax losses of
associate (Ocado) - - - (80 (18 0)
txceptional gain in respect of
associate (Ocado) - - 127 4 80 180
Profit before Partnership
bonus and tax 3679 3066 407 0 3798 3201
Taxation (46 0) (48 8) (48 1) (59 4) (56 9)
Net profit available for profit
sharing and retention in
the business 3219 257 8 3589 3204 2632
Partnership bonus (194.5) {151 3} {125 4) (181 1) (154 1)
As a percentage of pay 18% 15% 13% 20% 18%
Discontinued operations - - - (9 1) 07)
Profit for the year retained in
the business 127 4 1065 2335 1302 108 4
Net assets 2,0728 1,704 5 1,722 8 1,683 9 1,6499
Pay 1,021 7 940 4 908 O 864 8 8176
Average number of employees 74,800 70,000 68,700 68,200 66,800
including part-time employees 40,800 37,300 35,900 36,700 35,900
Average number of FTEs 48,500 45,900 45,100 44,900 43,900

*53 week year
[31)

Divisional operating profit ss after charging relevant corporate costs based on the business segments’

usage of corporate facilities and services 2007 has not been restated to reflect corporate cost

allocations

@ Comporate and other costs are pnncipally corporate and shared service overheads, transformation costs
and the new Partnership Services division set up costs
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

Across the Partnership we focus on a number of KPIs 1n order to idenufy trends in the
trading performance of both Waitrose and John Lewis These KPIs are designed to help
us understand how we are using our assets and where we are achieving efficiencres withan
the Partnership

Wartrose John Group Waitrose John Group
Lewis Lewis
2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010
Trading perfermance
Gross sales growth
- total continuing operations 9 8% 11 9% 10.6% 9 0% 28% 6 5%
Gross sales growth
— like-for-like™® 4 0% 10 0% 6 4% 36% 23% 31%
Operating margin® 55% 6 2% 5.3% 59% 57% 53%
Gross sales per selling
FTE (£000s) 226.6 1859 2225 1633
Operating profit per FTE (£000s)* 108 9.1 89 114 78 85
Number of stores™® 243 32 223 29
Average selling space {m sg ft)® 46 40 86 42 39 81
Gross sales per selling sq ft (£) 1,093 808 960 1,066 740 910
Operating profit per selling
sq ft (£)® 60 50 50 63 42 48
Cash flow and hquidity
Operating cash flow before
Partnership bonus (Em) 745.1 647 6
Capital expenditure (Em)*® 354 0 1195 492 7 3035 1118 445 1
tnterest cover® 38 54
Balance sheet
Net assets {(Em) 20728 1,704 5
Net debt (Em) 548 4 402 4
Gearing™ 26 5% 236%
Return on invested capital® 7.9% 77%

W Like-for-hke sales exclude the impact of branch openings and closures

@ QOperating profit excludes profits from the disposal of surplus property Margin 1s expressed as a %
of gross sales

@ The number of stores trading as at the year end date

4 Average selling space {of all stores and branches) includes all customer facing areas and excludes
offices, warehouse space and staff facilities

= Capital expenditure for the group includes £19 2m (2010 £29 8m) of spending on group-wide
information technology systems, vetucles, offices and other assets, not allocated to the operating
busmesses

®  |nterest cover is profit before net finance costs and tax, after Partnership bonus, divided by net
finance costs excluding the financing element of pensitons and long service leave, and IAS 39 fair
value adjustments included within finance costs

™ Geanng I1s net debt divided by net assets

@  Return on mnvested capttal 1s post tax profit, adjusted for non-operating 1tems, as a proportion of
average operating net assets, adjusted to reflect a deemed capital value for property lease rentals




Partners at
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Group performance

2010/11 saw the Parmnership reap the benefit of
decisions taken to invest dunng the recession,
resulting 1n strong sales growth in both Waitrose
and John Lewis Throughout the year both
Wartrose and John Lewis traded ahead of their
respective markets They increased market
share, developed their onhne offers, opened
new stores and new formats while conunuing to
umprove and innovate their shops across the
country

The Parmership’s gross sales were £8 21bn, up
£784 8m, or 10 6% on last year Waitrose gross
sales were £4 97bn, up 9 8%, while John Lew:s
gross sales were £3 23bn, up 11 9%

Operaung profit was £431 Om, up £41 3m,
10 6%, on last year

Profit before Partnership bonus and tax was
£367 9m, up £61 3m, or 20 0%, on last year
Operanng profit margin as a percentage of
gross sales remained at 5 26% Profit before
Partnership bonus and tax as a percentage of
gross sales increased from 4 1% to 4 5%

Partnership bonus was £194 5m, which equates
to 18% of pay or the equivalent of 9 4 weeks’
pay, compared to £151 3m or 15% of pay, the
equivalent of 7 8 weeks’ pay, last year
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Net finance costs

Net finance costs, which reflect the cost of our debt plus
the mnterest element of our pension and long service
leave, decreased by £20 Om, from £83 1m to £63 1m
Changes to the financing element of penston costs,
which 1s the difference between the return on the
scheme assets and the mterest cost on the scheme
Labibties, and the financang element of long service
leave are drven by changes in the external investment
market mcluding rates for corporate bonds, which
means these costs can change materially from one year
to the next driven by market volatlity They have
decreased by £38 Om, from £40 2m last year to £2 2m
this year Exclucing pensons and long service leave, net
finance costs mcreased by £18 Om, 42 0%, from £42 9m
to £60 9m, manly due to the premmum of £9 2m paid
on the parval buyback of £158m of the nomunal value
of the 2012 Bond, mnterest payable on the £300m Bond
ssued 1 July 2010 of £9.7m and a full year’s nterest
payable on the £275m Bond ssued m Apnl 2009 of
£23 Om bemg an mncrease of £4 2m These are

offset by a decrease m interest payable of £5 3m on the
2012 Bond, following the partial buyback and n
floating interest payable of £1 4m on mterest rate swaps
and medum term loans

Pension charge

We conttnue to maintain an open
non-contnbutory final salary defined benefit
pension scheme We now have about 45,000 active
members, 24,000 pensioners and dependants and
30,000 deferred pensioners in the Scheme

Day-to-day management of the funds 1s delegated to a
number of mvestment managers under the gindance
of the Trustees The assets of the schemes are held in
separate funds admimistered by the Trustees The
Partmership takes a long term view of 1ts pensions
hahihoes but recogmises that there are sigmficant risks
from increasing longewty, the effect of age
discriiminanon legislaben, and from volanlity and
uncertainty in the mvestment markets

The pension accounung charge ncluded within
operating profit of £122 9m for the year to

29 January 2011, was up 24 3% or £24 Om on last
year, due maimly to adverse movements 1n corporate
bond yields Actual pension cash contmbutons in
respect of the year were £267 Om, compared to
£107 1m for last year, reflecang ongoing
contmbunons of £94 4m, agreed defict reducnon
contributions of £22 6m and a £150 Om one-off
special cash contribuuon made m March 2010

A defined contribution scheme 1s also available 1n
the three year pened for Partners waiting to
enter the defined benefit scheme, to provide
pension benefits during the waiung peniod The

8
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Parmership matches contmbuuons made by
Partners, up to 6% of pensionable pay

Dunng the year Partners contnbuted £1 4m to the
defined conmbunon scherme and the Partmership
provided contnbunons of £1 Im Partners are also
able to top up their pension provision with
Addinonal Voluntary Contributtons (AVCs) Durning
the vear 18,300 Parmers contributed £20 6m i
AVCs At the year end the combined defined
contmbuton and AVC funds stood at £210 6m
Actuarial valuation of the penston funds

A formal acmarial valuation 1s carried out at least
once every three years by an independent
professionally qualified actuary, in order to assess, on
a prudent basis, the amount of assets to be set aside
to meet the pension promises made to the valuaton
date, taking into account future expected mvestment
returns, as well as to determne the future level of
funding, estimated on prudent assumptons, that the
Partmership needs to put into the schemes For the
main pension scheme, the last formal valuanon was
carnied out as at 31 March 2010 Thus resuited 1n a
funding surplus of £83m The market value of the
assets of the fund as at 31 March 2010 was £2,341m
The actuanal valuation of these assets showed that
they were sufficient to cover 104% of the benefits
which had accrued to members As at 29 January
2011 the funding surplus 1s estimated to have
mcreased to £105m or 105%

In addition to the main scheme there 1s also a semor
pension top up scheme The last formal valuanen of
this scheme was carned out as at 31 March 2010 and
resulted mn a funding deficait of £6m Defiait
reduction contmbutons totalhing £6m were made in
January and February 2011 to discharge this deficat.
The next formal actuarial valuation of both pension
schemes will take place as at 31 March 2013
Accounting valuation under IAS 19

IAS 19 requires the financial posinon of the
Parmership’s penston funds to be reassessed at each
balance sheet reporting date following a prescrnibed
methodology This produces results that are
different from, and more volatle than, the actuanal
valuation, as members’ habihues at the balance sheet
date are vatued using market rates of corporate
bonds and do not reflect expected future returns on
the assets the fund owns Other key assumpuoons for
the IAS 19 accounting valuaion have been based on
those used for the most recent actuanal valuation,
adjusted to represent a best esumate rather than a
prudent view, where approprate These have been
updated to assess the assets and Labihines of the
schemes as at 29 January 2011

The assets of the penston funds as at 29 January 2011
were £2,466m (2010 £1,948m) The accountng
habihtes of the pension funds were calculated to be

9




John Leuns inuvested in
Magna Fark, the new
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near Milton Keynes
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

£2,880m (2010 £2,853m) Together, this resulted
in an IAS 19 pension fund deficit of £414m (2010
£905m), a reducnon of £491m (54%)

The increase in the pension asset values sice last year
reflects recovery in the equuty markets and steps taken
to rmugate the pension defiat, mcluding a £150m one-
off speaal cash contribution made mio the Pension
Fund in March 2010 In addition, duning the year the
Pension Fund took the opportunity 1o reduce 1ts stake
mn the Ocado business at the tme of 1ts Ininal Public
Offering 1n July 2010, realismg £100m, and since year
end has sold the remaming shares in this business,
reaising a further £150m The Partnership transferred
1ts shareholding m Ocado to the Pension Fund n
November 2008 at a value of £127 7m In total £250m
has been realised from the disposal of the Shareholding
that cost the Partmership £80m

The mam differences between the eshmated funding
valuation surplus at 29 January 2011 of £105m and the
IAS 19 pension fund deficit of £414m relate to
different rates used to reflect the current value of the
scheme’s future habithines (the discount rate) of £440m,
the exclusion of the fund’s investment i JLP Scottish
Limuted Parmerstup for IAS 19 purposes of £98m,
offset by other favourable differences of £19m

Tax

The tax charge decreased compared with last year
despite mcreased profits, mamly because of the impact
of the corporanon tax rate change from 28% to 27%
on brought forward deferred tax balances Thus
resulted m an effecuve tax rate of 26 5% compared to
last year’s rate of 31 5%

Capital expenditure

Capital spenchng m 2010/11 increased by £48m to
£493m, compared with £445m last year Waitrose
mvested £354m, mainly on 20 new stores acquured or
built dunng the year, three relocanons and the
acqusiaon of five Channel Island stores John Lewis
mnvested £120m, opemng three at home stores, roling
out the new Womenswear concept to mine department
stores, and mvesting m a new full bne department store
at Stratford, which will open 1in September 2011 In
addition, £19m of expenditure was mvested centrally,
mamnly in maintaimng and modernising

our Informaton Technology platforms, head office
buildings and refurbishment of our holiday centres

Cash flow and net debt

We generated £745 1m m operanng cash flow (before
Parmership bonus) up 15 1% on the prior year Our
geanng rano mcreased from 23 6% to 26 5% with year
end net debt increasing by £146 Om to £548 4m This
mncrease 15 due to addinonal net cash borrowings which
were invested 1n the business and used to pay the
special contribution to the pension scheme

10
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Return on invested capital

Return on invested capital (note 8, page 6) was
7 9% an improvement of 0 2% on last year's

7 7% and reflects increased returns from
irvestment decisions and efficiency mitatives
made across the Partnership

Profit for the year
Profit for the year was £127 4m, up by £20 9m
(19 6%) on last year

Net assets

Net assets increased by £368 3m, 21 6%, to
£2,072 8m This 1s manly due to sigmficant
Investments 1n new stores, extensions and
refurbishments, distnnbution and new
informatnon technology systems of £492 7m and
a decrease n the pension fund deficit of

£350 8m, net of £139 8m deferred tax, offset by
an increase 1 net debt of £146 Om and
depreciation and amorusation of £239 5m

11
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Waitrose
Waitrose traded sirongly through the year,
achieving among the best margins of the sector

Waitrose concentrated on attracung more new
customers through nvesting in value, innovative
top-tier ranges, new space and new formats
These investments succeeded 1n attracung on
average around 300,000 new weekly customers

As a result, gross sales grew by 9 8% to £4 97bn
Food only hike-for-like sales grew 4 0%,
excluding petrol

Sales density rose by 2 5% to £1,093 per square
foot and sales productvity per selling FTE
increased to £226,600, up by £4,100 (1 8%)

on last year

On value, Waitrose boosted 1ts position with the
launch in September of Brand Price Match, a
long-term commtment to price match Tesco on
1,000 branded products, which sits alongside
the essential Waitrose range This combinauon
means customers know they can get their weekly
shop at Waitrose without sacrificing either value
or quahty

Waitrose’s credentials for good food, fine quality
ingredients and cooking were further
strengthened with the arrival of Delia Smuth and
Heston Blumenthal as brand ambassadors 1n
March 2010 The successful markenng campaign
— across adverusing, online and pubkhcatons —ts
attracung new customers and generaung
substanual incremental sales of around £50m

‘Waitrose has an unmatchable top-tier of
product ranges and innovation continued
throughout 2010 with the launch of Menu From
Waitrose, Duchy Oniginals From Waitrose and
Heston From Wairose Another significant
development that underhnes the Waitrose
commitment to quality cooking was the launch
The contract to of the UK’s first supermarket cookery school

develop the Ducky  hased in London in November 2010
Onginals brand was

one of the mnovations  The online business went from strength to
that gained customers  strength and 1s poised for further growth
Jor Wartrose  following the move onto a new technology
platform launched in March 2011, and the
planned expansion within the M25 without
restricaon from July 2011
12
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Twenty new branches were opened during the
year plus three relocations, which represents an
additional 253,000 sq ft, 5 7%, of selling space
Nine of these new shops are in the convenience
format, including three in the new small
convenience format Five shops were acquired
1 the Channel Islands with the first branch in
Jersey opening 1in February 2011 and the first
branch in Guernsey opening in March 2011

Two key strategic partnerships have taken
Waitrose to many more customers in a range of
setings Welcome Break service station outlets
are performing ahead of expectations and the
tnal with Boots continues to show encouraging
results at this early stage

Waitrose’s mvestrent was not only in new and
refurbished shops, but also in infrastructure,
where 1t invested £64 3m durnng the year In July
2010 a new 100,000 sq ft chilled warehouse was
opened n Bracknell and the “end-to-end” focus
on operational efficiency 1n 1ts supply chain
generated substantial savings These investments
are cniacal to driving efficiencies, creating
further capacity for growth and delivering profit
margins

Operating profit grew by 3 0% to £274 9m
Operatung margin was down shghy from 5 89%
to 5 53%, operating profit per square foot was
marginally down 3 8% to £60 as was operaung
profit per FTE which decreased by 4 0% to
£10,800, reflecung investment in the business
that has yet to reach maturity

13
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

John Lews

John Lews performed well ahead of expectanons,
consistently beaung compettors in both shops
and onhne Gross sales grew by 11 9%, to

£3 23bn Like-forlike sales grew by 10 0%

Sales per square foot rose by 9 2% to £808, from
£740 last year, and sales per selling FTE grew by
£22.800, 14 0%, to £185,900

All areas of the business have traded well, and
contnue to gain market share, demonstranng the
appeal and relevance of the offer Each category
achieved strong sales growth Fashion was up by
14 7%, Home up by 12 3% and Elecmcals &
Home Technology (EHT) up by 8 4%

John Lewis’ multichannel and online operanons
were critical to this success johnlewis com
achieved sales of £538 2m, up £147 9m, or

37 9%, and well ahead of expectations Thas was
achieved by increasing the number of products
sold onhine, investing further 1n the
development of the Magna Park dsstribution
facihity and extending services such as Click &
Collect which gives customers greater flexabihty
in their shopping Customers can now chck and
collect from all John Lewis branches and

24 Waitrose branches

A key driver of online sales growth was the
fashion category which continues to strengthen
with new brands such as Ghost, Armanm and
Mint Velvet These online mninauves have been
recogmsed by Which? awarding johnlewis com
“online retailer of the year”

The Never Knowingly Undersold (NKU) pricing
commitment was sirengthened through 1ts
extension to the online price of “bricks and
chicks” competitors

In 2011 the johnlewis com delivery catchment
will be extended to cover internauonal
locauons, imually within mainland Europe, the
Nordic countries and Ireland

John Lews has transformed the look of its
fashion floors which reflects a determinauon to
have an unbeatable range and presentation mn
fashion Customer appeal remains broad with a
choice of products from value to premum, with
an emphasis on mnovation throughout the offer

14
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The accessibility of John Lewts connnues to
1mprove with three further at home shops
opening 1n Croydon, Swindon and Tunbndge
Wells in addituon to the first in Poole
Customers have responded well to the new
format with three further opemings planned 1n
2011

John Lews continues the growth of 15 estate
with an exciung new department store on the
Olympic site at Stratford, opemng in September
2011, and 1t will continue to work with property
developers to explore potential new locations n
key city centres in the United Kingdom such as
the recently announced Birmingham shop The
importance of the existing estate 1s reflected 1n
an ongoing refurbishment programme whch is
mnproving infrastructure and introducing
mnovative new retail concepts

John Lewis will be the Official Department
Store Provider to the London 2012 Olympic
Games and Paralympic Games and recognises
the important part it will play in the future of
Stratford as a vibrant retail centre

During the year 1t relaunched its insurance
business under the John Lewis brand with
encouraging results

John Lewns’ reputanion for outstanding quality,
value and service was recognised by Verdict,
awarding it “Britain’s favourite retaler” in 2011
for the 8th tme 1n the award’s 12 years

Operaung profit grew by 22 2% to £201 2m and
has returned to pre-recession levels Operating
profit margin on gross sales mcreased by 53
basis points

Operaung profit per square foot grew by £8,
19 2%, to £30 and operaung profit per FTE
improved by 17 8% to £9,100

15
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Business review

Business and strategy

Purpose of the Partmership

The Partnership’s reputaton 1s founded on the umqueness of our ownership structure and our
commercial success Our purpose 1s the happiness of all our members, through their worthwhile
and satisfying employment in a successful business, wath success measured by our ability to sustain
and to enhance our posinon both as an outstanding retaler and a thniving example of employee
ownership We beheve our model, where commeracial success 1s a dnving force but where the needs
of Customers, Partners, and long-term financial ambiuons are balanced, represents a sustainable,
compassionate and fairer form of capitalism and a better way to do business

Strategic development - background

The Partnership owns two of the strongest retail brands in the UK. Waitrose 1s renowned for the
freshness, quality, safety and provenance of its food combined with the expertise and service of a
specialist shop while John Lewis’ reputation 15 built on a strong product range and excellent
service Neither Waitrose nor John Lewis depends on dominant market share but on disunctive
posinoming which secures an exceptional degree of loyalty from customers That loyalty has been
buitt on customers’ trust and confidence in our sourcing, pricing and quality standards and by
selling our products impartially with consistently exceptional service More recently 1t has been
remnforced by recognition of our long-held desire to act responsibly and to mimimise our
environmental impact The Partnership is uniquely placed to do this because our social, ethical
and environmental values are ingrained 1n our culture, and we consistently demonstrate this
through our commitment to the communities we serve

2010 conuinued to offer a difficult economic backdrop, with pressure exerted on consumers
through a mixture of inflanonary pressure, nsing unemployment, subdued wage nises and public
spending cuts We expect 2011 to be difficult with a continuation of the negauve factors impactung
consumers and exertng pressure on household spending However, the Partnership retains a long
term outlock and we remain commutted to providing a distncuve offer and expernence to our
customers and to nurture ‘an enterprising Partnership”that delivers innovanive customer solunons

Strategic mitiatives

Our strategy 1s founded on three key building blocks — Partner, Customer and Profit, and we
ensure that the Partnership develops 1n a way which improves each of these 1n a posiuve manner,
while maintaining a balance between the three

Both our brands traded well through 2010, outperforming therr respecnve markets, and this confidence
has been supported by a srong media presence The investments we macde in value have been especially
important. In Waitrose, the success of the essennal range, our Brand Pnce Match imunauve and
promouonal pricing, such as for the Deha and Heston campaigns, generated growth Likewise, John
Lews has placed great emphasis on value with new ranges, powerful advertising and the launch of Never
Knowingly Undersold online to match bricks and chicks compentors We are also managing substannal
reorgamsations in parts of our business to ensure that the Parmership remams compeunuve and that our
Parmers remain at the heart of our service offering

We conunue to pursue profitable growth within the UK and seek new opportunities to develop our
brands We have taken both Waitrose and John Lewss to new customers through the opeming of
standard stores and exciung new smaller formats We have expenenced strong growth from our
online operauons as customers increasingly embrace a muluchannel approach to retail, and we wll
conunue to mnvest 1n improving the ease with which our customers can interact with us In Waitrose
we have begun to develop strategic partnerships to broaden our appeal to reach new customers
Within John Lewis we have introduced a mobile-optimised website which recogmses our customers’
desire for a seamless shopping expenence, an area we will build on 1n the coming year

During the year we relaunched our Greenbee direct services business as_John Lews Insurance and
refocused it on purely financial service protectton products We believe that this provides a closer
linkage between these trust based products and our exisung brand We continue to examine ways
1o further leverage the Parmership’s brands going forward
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Resources and relationships

Partners

Our culture

The Parmership’s ulumate purpose 1s “the happiness of Partners through worthwhile and
satisfying employment in a successful business” To achieve this, we aim to create an environment
where all Partners have a consistent, rewarding and motivating experience This expenence 15
based on the Partmership and Partners delivering three commitments

e  Take responsibihity for our business success we take responsibility to deliver the nght
expenence for all our customers and generate profits for us all to share,

¢  Buld relabonships powered by our principles we build relationships based on honesty,
respect and encouragement We expect these behaviours of each other and demonstrate
them at all nmes,

e (Create real influence over our working lives we take opportumtes to develop ourselves,
balance work and hfe prioniues and offer personal support

We aim to recruit and retain Partners who can deliver commercial success and also demonstrate,
through their behaviours, that they embrace our distinct culture

The John Lewis Partnership operates without discrimination and embraces diversity, this 1s
reflected in all that we do The Partnership 1s commitied to providing equal opportumties for all
m employment, regardless of individual differences such as gender, ethnic origin, disability, sexual
cnentanon, age, social background, rehigion and behefs Discriminatuon of any kind will not be
tolerated and will be dealt with it hine wath the Partnership’s ‘Fair Treatment’ policy

Talent development

Qur mntention 1s that every Partner fulfils their iIndividual potential and can develop their career
within the Partnership We aim to provide exemplary leadershup that empowers Partners to
deliver first class customer service n each one of our department stores, food shops, or other
retail channels Qur Partners are equipped to do so through their attztude, behaviour and skalls,
supported by firstclass traiming and development

Benefits

Qur reward strategy aims to provide a Total Reward Package that offers competinve pay and
disuncuve market leading benefits, such as our non-contributory defined benefit final salary
pension scheme for those Partners who stay with us for more than three years, and for those 1n
their first three years, a defined contribution scheme where we will match Partner contributions
up to 6% We aim to provide opportumties for Parmers to have a choice 1n benefits and leisure
actmities, recogrusing the growing diversity of Partners Our reward policies are developed to
encourage a sense of belonging to a community and to offer opportumties Partmers cannot easily
obtain themselves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Partnership has always believed that commercial success 1s directly hnked to being a good
corporate citizen (ur commitment to act responsibly 1s strengthened by the social, ethical and
environmental values ingrained in our cubture respect, honesty and fairness, sharing the rewards
and responsibilities of ownership, and conducting our business with integrity and courtesy

Over the last year, we have made strong progress in embedding CSR further into the business and
raising Partner awareness This has resulted 1n strengthened product sourcing policies, improved
waste recyching rates and mcreased chantable and commumnty contributions Our efforts have also
been recogmsed externally in leading benchmarks of CSR performance — we retained our
platinum level status 1n the Busmess in the Community (BITC) Corporate Responsibility Index

A key focus for us now 1s achieving an absolute reduction 1n our operatnonal carbon emissions by
2020/21, which will undoubtedly be challenging as we are locking to more than double the size of
our business by then
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Resources and relationships (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (continued)

We remain committed to openly communicating our CSR actvity, achievements and challenges
Detailed informanon is included within our CSR reports which can be found on the Partnership
website, unww johnleunspartnership co uk.

Governance and risk

Effective governance and risk management are essential for ensuring that we are able to meet our
stakeholders’ needs in the long term Our Responsible Business Group, supported by steering
groups for the four areas of our CSR strategy enwvironment, marketplace (customers, products and
suppliers), workplace, and community, drive our CSR programmes forward so that we conunue to
embed CSR nio our everyday business practices

We have a formal risk assesstnent which helps to decide where to focus our efforts and a
materality process which follows the recommendanons of the external Global Reporung Ininatnve
(GRI)

We engage with a wide range of stakeholders to increase cur responsiveness to their concerns,
find new ways to reduce our impacts, balance business efficiency with economic success and,
ulumately, conunue to make the Partnership more compenuve, profitable and sustainable

Customers, products and suppliers

The Partnership 1s commutted to selling responsibly sourced products, dealing fairly with 1ts
suppliers, and providing excellent value and unnvalled customer service

Customers and customer service

The Partnership behieves in creating a long-term sustainable and successful business by engaging
with customers and acting 1n thetr interests Both Waitrose and John Lewis maintain an ongoing
dialogue with their customers through customer research and feedback, surveys, focus groups,
and regular mystery shopping

We are dehighted that our Partners are recognsed for their service levels in many customer
satisfacuon surveys and awards In 2010 Waitrose came top for food and grocery in Verdict's
survey of over 6,000 shoppers and John Lewis was voted Brntain’s favourite retailer for the third
year runmng

Product provenance, safety and integrity

The traceability and safety of our products and ingredients 1s integral to customers’ trust in us
Our ngorous sourcing pelcies, mspectuons and farm assurance schemes ensure the highest
standards of quality, safety, and environmental and amimal welfare across our supply chain

Dedicated technical departments work with our buying teams to make sure that every product we
sell 15 safe to use and that all our own-brand products comply with relevant consumer Iegislatton
and safety standards

Sourcing

The Partnership works with over 5,000 supphers to sell quality products, supported by ethical and
environmental standards and pohcies, paying them a fair price and helping them to remnvest in
their businesses

In Waitrose, British sourcing and maimntaining the highest standards of agricultural and
environmental management are key focus areas The Waitrose Local and Regional Sourcing
programme 15 one of the most estabhshed n the food retail sector - covering nearly 2,500 locally
and regionally sourced products from over 450 producers At the Partnership’s Leckford Estate 1n
Hampshire, we acuvely practise our principles concerning sustainable agriculture and animal
welfare, and supply Waitrose shops with mulk, poultry, mushroorms, apples, pears, ader, apple
Juice, eggs and honey In sourcing its products, Waitrose unlises a growing number of ceruficaton,
verificatnon and assurance schemes For example, Waitrose 1s commuitted to ensuring that palm o1l
used 1n own-brand products 1s from cerofied sustainable sources by 2012
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Waitrose works with supplers to offer healthier everyday products and to drive nutrinonal quality
through appropnate ingredient selection, and supports educational mtiauves such as the Royal
Horucultural Society’s Campaign for School Gardening

John Lewis 1s also commtted to ensuring the integnty of its products Its “Bringing quality to hfe”
vision focuses on the raw materials, manufacturing processes and durability of its products, as well
as responsible product disposal opuons and increasing its range of sustainable products such as
energy-efficient electrical apphances John Lews produces 1ts own-brand duvets, pillows,
furmishing fabrics alongside ready-made and made-to-measure curtains at its Herbert Parkinson
UK factory in Darwen

We requrre all our own-brand supphiers to commit to the terms of our Responsible Sourcing Code
of Practice, which addresses standards on workers’ rights All our own-brand supphers are
required to register on Sedex — a web based database that enables the management of ethical and
responsible pracuces within global supply chains In Waitrose, 70% of supplier sites are registered
In John Lews, 90% of suppliers and 79% of supplier sites are registered

Trading faurly

We trade fairly with our supphers and support estabhshed schemes such as Fairtrade and
Traidcraft, which conmibute to the sustainable development of the commumues where farmers
and workers live

Since 115 establishment in 2005, the Wairose Foundauon has raised more than £3m for over 200
projects m three countries Initally focused in South Afnica, the Foundatton was extended 1n 2009
to Kenya and Ghana

We launched the John Lewis Foundation to supplers in early 2010, and we are currently
idenufying opportumues for suitable educauonal or employment-based commumnity projects that
will support and service the communities where John Lewis products are sourced

Community

Being a force for good has always been a part of the Partnership’s vision, and we are committed to
making a positive difference to the communities where we do business This involves developing
strong, long-lasung partnerships at a local level, and devoting ume and energy to building
healthier communiues

Charitable and commumty investment

In 2010/11, our Partnership-wide charitable and community contnbutions totalled £8 8m, which
1s equivalent to 2 4% of our profits before Partnership bonus and tax, as measured using the
London Benchmarking Group (LBG) model

The Waitrose Community Matters imtiative donated over £2 7m in 2010/11 to a wide range of
channes and communty groups and John Lewss raised over £350,000 for 1ts chanty of the year,
Beanng Bowel Cancer, 1n 2010 John Lewis will be supportung *help the homeless’ charities 1n
2011 and local branches will choose appropriate chariues to support for their local area

The Partnership has an established Give As You Earn scheme with Sharing the Canng, the
fundraising arm of the Chanues Aid Foundauon (CAF), to enable Partners to make tax-free
chantable donauons directly from their pay

Partner volunteering

Pariners make a genune difference to the commumty and local people’s hves by offering their
ume and they themselves often develop new skalls, grow in confidence and become more
motvated employees

The Golden Jubilee Trust (G]T) 1s the Partnership’s flagship employee volunteering scheme
where any Partner can apply for a full- or part-ume volunteering secondment with a UK registered
chanty for up to six months To celebrate the GJT’s 10th anniversary in 2010, the Parmership
funded 10 addinonal secondments
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Resources and relationships (continued)

Community (continued)

Town centre investment

The Partnership believes 1t can play a vital role in creating vibrant and sustainable town centres
and aims to create comfortable, attractive environments for customers, build stronger
relationships with our neighbours and attract, tram and recruit local people The Waitrose Effect
and John Lews Effect documents (available on the Partnership website) provide further detail on
this approach and this year we piloted a stakeholder engagement event in Manchester to build
local partmerships

We intend to play a key role in the East London regeneraton programme, by developing flagship
low carbon Waitrose and John Lewis shops adjacent to the Olympic site Together they will create a
strong atiraction for customers and generate around 800 jobs In addition, we are commtted to
offering free employment raining and at least 250 job opportunittes to the long-term unemployed

Community Performance Indicators

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Total value of all chantable and community
investment contributions® (£) 7,617,988 7,942,881 8,819,056
Community investment as a % of
Profits before Partnership bonus and tax (%) 1 85% 259% 2 40%

! Includes, cash, m-kand, time and management costs as defined by the London Benchmarkung Group model

Environment

One of the foundauons of our business 1s making the nght decisions for the long term The
Partnership has programmes, processes and targets 1n place to ensure we continue to reduce our
mmpact on the environment

Carbon reduction

The Partnership 15 commuitted to reducing the carbon intensity of 1ts operations, products and
services and to developing policies to support the UK Government’s long-term target to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions by 80% by 2050

In 2010, we have developed a carbon footprint reduction programme which includes a target to
reduce our operauzonal CO: equivalent emussions by 15% by the end of 2020/21 against a 2010/11
basehne This programme reflects the actual reducuons we think are achievable 1n the next 10
years and includes some ambinous plans, such as developing renewable energy generation centres
at our stores It also lughlights the need for all our Partners to get involved and for Government
and businesses to work together The programme will be reviewed on an annual basis We
annocipate our enussions will nise for a couple of years before they decrease 1n response to the
implementaton of a range of emissions saving projects Our aspiration 1s to align our emissions
reducuons with long term government targets

Sales grew by 10 6% 1n 2010/11, but our total emissions only mcreased by 4 6% to 541,956 tonnes
in the same period A large proporuon of this increase 1s atinbutable to including new sources of
emissions this year such as water supply, water treatment and addinonal fuels used 1n our
buldings
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Energy

We conunue to fit the latest technology mnto our new shops and exisung estate and engage our
Partners in helping deliver reducuons locally We have improved the energy efficiency of our new
shops, new space opened 1n 2009 was on average 7% more efficient than our exisung wading
estate The prolonged cold weather this winter impacted shop energy efficiency through increased
heating usage As a result, shop energy use per square foot of trading floor area increased by 2%
in Waitrose and 1 5% 1n John Lewis

Transport

In many ways, our fleet 1s already industry-leading 1 carbon reducuon, but we conunuously look
for improvements and we have several projects underway We are committed to working with
vehicle manufacturers, legislators and planning authornues, to be at the forefront of developments
in technologies and robust carbon reporung in transport

Against our target to reduce transport CO: equivalent emissions by 15% relauve to turnover by
2013, we have made an improvement of 5 9% since our 2005/06 baseline Progress agamnst this
target has been impacted by growth in our store estate and an increase m customer deliveries plus
addinonal backhauling {which reduces overall distribution mileage, but sinfis the mileage from
supplier vehicles to our own} We remain commuitted to reducing the environmental impact of our
operattons

Renewable energy and alternative fuels

We conunue to consider all forms of renewable energy for our shops and head offices We have
been granted planning permussion for a pilot energy centre on the Isle of Wight where a biomass
combined cooling, heating and power plant will provide energy to Waitrose East Cowes Residual
heat will also be used 1n an adjacent medical centre and 50 zerocarbon homes

Our aim 15 to devise a cohesive, long-term transport fuel policy using a range of technologies with
the potential to become cost-effective alternatives to fossil fuels In the short term, we will be using
PPO (Pure Plant Oil) and biomethane and in ime, we expect to use hybnd vehicles for home
delhivenies

Refrigeration

Waitrose became the first major UK food retailer to stop using hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) for
refrigeraton in all new and refitted shops from 2010 and this will be rolled out to all shops by
2020, reducing our carbon footprint considerably Twenty six shops were using our new low
carbon refrigeration system at the end of 2010 We have reduced our direct refrigeration and
cooling CO: equivalent ermussions by 18% since last year and 20% since our 2008/09 baseline Our
target 1s to achieve a 50% reducton by 2012/13

Responsible development

Our Responsible Development Framework includes targets and guidance for the development
and refurbishment of our shops, offices and warehouses In setung out a framework we aim to
raise awareness, Increase ransparency, improve environmental performance and capture
performance data We are commutted to conunuing to review and develop our approach and in
2011, we will set new ambitious targets

New construcuon sites conunue to be registered and regularly assessed under the Considerate
Constructors Scheme All new shops also continue to be assessed by BREEAM, and we conunue to
achieve BREEAM ‘Excellent’ on the majonty of our projects and we are working towards
achieving ‘Outstanding’ on a number of projects
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Resources and relationships (continued)

Environment (continued)

Waste

We actively support waste reduction and recycling within our business, by our customers and
threughout our supply chain The Parinershup diverted 81% of 1ts operational waste from landfill
last year

Waitrose endeavours to mimimise food waste through accurate ordering and shelf hie
improvement, and 1ts work with FareShare and Company Shop, which make use of waste food
Some food waste mewitably occurs and anaerobic digesuon has proven to be a sustainable solunon
to avoid sending 1t to landfill, reduce our impact on the environment and create renewable
energy along the way In 2010, Waitrose was named 'Best retail or commercial food waste recycler’
at the Associanon for Organics Recycling (AFOR) Awards, recognising our pioneerig work with
anaerobic digestion

Packaging
Packaging 1s consistently identfied as a key 1ssue for our customers and other stakeholders Under

the terms of the Packaging Waste Regulanons, we are obhged to recover and recycle up to 80% of
our product packaging, depending on the material We support this legislanon, and contnbute
over £1 mllion a year towards a recycling comphance scheme that enables investment tn domestic
collections and pubhc recychng centres

Both Waitrose and John Lews also remain commutted to reducing the number of single-use
carrier bags given out to customers through promoung reusable bags and communicauons
encouraging customers to reuse their existing bags

In March 2010, Waitrose was one of 28 signatonies for the second phase of the Courtauld
Commitment aiming to reduce the carbon impact of grocery packaging, household food, and
waste and product and packaging waste 1n the supply chain

Water

Operauonally, the Partnership does not use a lot of water, but we recogmise the need o manage
our consumpton In 2010, we installed addiional water meters 1n all exisung and new shops,
allowing remote, accurate, real-ume water usage to be reported and used to inform our
programme of water-reducbon measures We have set a target to reduce shop water consumption
per square foot of rading floor area by 20% by 2013/14
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Environment Performance Indicators

2008-09 2008-10 2010-11
Total GHG emissions {CO:ze) 508,287 517,805 541,956
Proportion of generated waste diverted
from lzndfill (%) 49 52 81
Wartrose shop energy efficiency
(kWh per sq ft trading floor area) 1169 1128 1151
John Lewis shop energy efficiency
(kWh per sq ft trading floor area) 509 477 48 4
Transport related COze emissions
(tonnes/ £m sales} 906 885 8 88
Waitrose refrigeration and cooling direct
emissions {(COze tonnes) 80,798 78,715 64,398

Looking ahead

We aim to more accurately measure the value and impact of our community activity and are
considering creating new Partmership-wide employee volunteering opportunites to enable

large-scale Partner involvement in the commumties where we do business

We will implement our programme to deliver absolute reductions in operational CO: emissions
by 2020/21 and will look to progress the sourcing of certified sustainable palm oil, soy and
cotton We also recognise that we can play an important part in helping our Partners and

customers live more sustainably and we intend to act on this
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Rusks and uncertainties

Our rnisk management strategy remnforces the value of acuvely managing risk, rather than
ehminating 1t, and thereby ensures a disctphned approach to balancing risk and reward The
following provides an overvtew of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Partnership
along with mitigating acuons in place

Economc
As a busimess based almost solely in the UK, the Partnership 1s parucularly exposed to any economic
downturn which could affect consumer spending, most notably in the Deparunent Store business

However, the strength and diversity of the Waitrose and John Lews businesses, alongside our
growing multi-channel strategy together with developing services businesses, form an effective
means of managing economic risk in the current retail environment Our range and diversity of
products and services bring us into competition with a wide range of UK and internauonal
retailers in largely mature market segments with low underlying growth For this reason we
contnually focus on mamntaining our pre-eminent product quality, customer service and suppher
relationships, whilst retaiming our competitive pricing, enabling us to mamntain our appeal

Financial risk

The principal financial nsk which we face 1s the ability to generate and access sufficient funds to

satsfy our business needs, to meet our Partners’ expectauons for Partnership bonus and to nungate

aganst any adverse financial impact resulang from nisks including those 1dentfied 1n our business

planning process crystallising Other financial risks and mingations are covered in more detal below

and m note 22 to the accounts

¢+  Funding and hquidity
Liqudity requirements are managed 1n line with short and long term cash flow forecasts
linked to our trading patterns, business plans and budgets and reviewed against the
Partnership’s debt portfolo and matunty profile Details of the Partnership’s borrowings,
together with their interest rates and matunty profiles, are also provided 1n note 25 to the
accounts

*  Interest rate risk
In order to manage the risk of interest rate fluctuations the Partnership targets a rano of
fixed and floaung rate debt in line with 1ts treasury policy Exposures to interest rate
fluctranons are managed using interest rate swaps Details of the Partnership’s borrowings
and interest rate exposures are provided 1n note 25 to the accounts

*  Foreign currency risk
The Partmership uses derivauves 1o manage exposures (0 movements 1n exchange rates
ansing from transactions with foreign supphers Foreign currency exposures are hedged
primarily using forward foreign exchange contracts Details are provided in note 22 to the
accounts

. Credit risk
The Parmership has no significant customer credit risk Cash deposits and other financial
mstruments give rise to credit risk on the amounts due from bank counterparuies These risks
are managed by restrictung such transactions to counterparues with a credit rating not less
than a Standard & Poor’s equivalent ‘A’ rating

¢  Capatal risk
The Parmership maimntaimns a capital structure which 18 consistent with an ivestment grade
credit rating

¢  Energy nsk
The Partmership operates risk management processes for the procurement of energy
associated with 1ts activities

. Insurable risk
The Parmership’s capuve msurance company, JLP Insurance Limited based in Guernsey,
provides remnsurance of the Partmership’s employer’s, public and vehicle third party hability
msurances and of the Parmership’s healthcare insurance cover It also insures ServicePlan
Limited and remsures Landmark Insurance Company Limited, third party providers of
extended warranty products to customers of John Lews
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Pensions risk

Our pension oblhigation effectively represents our longest term risk and 1s of crnincal
umportance The Pension Fund assets are held 1n separate funds admimstered by the
Trustees, who delegate day-to-day management of these funds to a number of investment
managers Our pension arrangements and funding posinon are explained 1in note 24 We
have executed a deficit mibigation strategy over the past six years which means our Pension
Fund on an actuanal basis 1s now in surplus We acuvely monttor the outlook of asset and
liabihties performance against the assumpuons set both on an accounung and actuarnal
basis and will develop a formal framework for managing the Finanaal and Investment Risk
of the Pension Fund over the course of the coming year The hquidity risk 1s managed by
ensuring the annual contrbuuon to the Fund more than covers the outgomngs

Input cost mflation

Input cost price inflaton 1s a risk to our businesses and as a result we closely monitor the
environment to ensure that we are obtaining the best value, at a fair price, for products
and raw matenals that we source We also continue to focus on delivering operatuonal
efficiencies, which will help offset these increases, through a number of efficiency
programmes and imtiatives as well as through our financial hedging strategy for foreign
exchange and energy

Human resources

The successful delivery of key strategic projects, such as the implementauon of new
systems, the reengineering of business processes or major infrastructure development, 15 of
paramount importance to the Partnership as they improve the efficiency and resthence of
our operations whilst providing a strong platform for future growth The successful
delivery of these projects depends on the resources and skills sets available to the
Partnership Our Personnel strategy aims to ensure that the Parmership possesses the
appropnate skills and resources required to deliver these projects Resources are
continually reviewed and ahgned with the business critical pnorities Skalls gaps are
addressed through firstclass training and development of Partners When the required
skills are not available due to resources constraints or thewr highly specialised nature they
are boughtn by the Partnership

Customer offer

Broadening our multi-channel offer and extending our customer base are key to the
Partnership’s growth ambitions We also recognise that the pre-eminent quality of our
products and customer service 1s cntcal to the Partnership’s success, and a detenoration
of these would impact our business The Partnership has a clear muluchannel strategy

to extend 1ts reach whilst leveraging our online position with our established footprint

In addition, we regularly review our customer and service strategies that include ongoing
category and range reviews, whilst conunuing to invest in our store environments and our
mula-channel offer

Health and safety

The Partnership 1s commutted to gomng about 1ts business in a way that avoids, so far as1s
reasonably practicable, causing harm to people or property, and to promotng, through 1ts
extensive occupational health service, the wellbeing of 1ts workforce This commitment
underpins our approach to health and safety, with Board level responsibility being carned
by the Director of Personnel, supported by specialist technical advisers 1n safety and
occupational health employed within the two divisions We have set ourselves the on-going
target of reducing the causes of incidents through continuous improvements to our risk
management process We cannot expect to ehminate health and safety risk totally from the
workplace but cur current pniority 1s to ensure that management at alt levels know and
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Risks and uncertainties (continued)

understand the risks within their areas of responsibility We have revisited, across the
business, the quality and effectiveness of our nisk assessment and incident invesugation
processes and the completeness of our health and safety management systems We have
enhanced our systems and measures which support a more proactive approach to meeung
our commuitments to the safety and well being of our Partners, suppliers and customers

Business conunwty and disaster recovery

Any significant incident, such as a terrorist attack, pandemic flu outbreak, informauon
loss, ecrime, or an event which impacts upon our mainframe systems or key support
funcuons, could severely compromise our ability to trade We keep our Business Conunuity
capability under review and continue to refine 1t for all sigmificant business areas

Other significant risks and uncertainties
Regulatory, pohitical, fraud, comphance and operational risks are other significant nsks
and uncertainties that face the Partnership for which mitigating actions are 1in place

Compliance statement

This review has been prepared 1n accordance with section 417 of the Compames Act 2006
The review’s intent 1s to provide informanon to Partners, shareholders and the
Partnership’s other stakeholders It should not be relied upon by any other party or for
any other purpose

Where this review contains forward-looking statements, these are made by the Directors in
good faith based on the information available to them at the ume of their approval of this
report These statements should be treated with caution due to the inherent uncertainties
underlying any such forward-tocking information

Other information

Additional financial and non-financial information, including press releases and year end
presentations, can be accessed on our website, unww johnleunspartnership co uk
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Darectors’ report

Principal activity and business review

The principal activity of the group 1s retathing The company cenwols the businesses listed

in note 33, comprising 28 John Lewis department stores, 4 John Lews at home stores,
Johnlewis com, 235 Waitrose supermarkets, 15 Waitrose convenience stores, waitrose com and
business to business contracts in the UK and abroad and anaillary manufactunng activiies A
review of the business and likely future developments 1s included separately in the Chairman’s
Statement and Business Review on pages 2 to 26, which forms part of thts Directors’ report

Role of the Partnership Board

The Partnership Board has responsibility for the overall management and performance of the
Partnership and the approval of its long-term objectives In parucular, it agrees the Partnership
strategy, business plan and annual budgets, including those of the Divisions It monitors
performance, including that of the operating dvisions, against business plans, budgets and
forecasts

It compnises fourteen members — the Chairman, the nen-executive Deputy Chairman, two
further non-executive directors, five members appointed by the Chairman and five elected

members nominated by the Partnership Council, (the representanve body of all of the members

of the Partnership, which 1s elected through a democranc election process) The elected
directors are required to stand for re-election every three years The three non-executive
directors bring external expenience and independence to the Board’s deliberations

Board meeting and Committee attendance during the year

Chairman’s
Audit and Risk  Remuneration Nominations
Board Committee Committee Committee
10 meetings 4 meetings 3 meetings 1 meeting
Charlie Mayfield 10 1
Dawid Barclay 10 4 3 1
Johnny Aisher 10 4 1
Dawvid Anderson®®
Anne Buckley 8 3
Mansa Cassoni 10
Simon Fowler 7 2
Jeff Hewtt™ 4
Baroness Hogg™?
Dawid St} Jones® 3 3
Tracey Killen 9
Patrick Lewis* 10 2
Kim Lowe 10 1
Mark Price 10
Tony Probert™® 8
Andy Street 10
Jane Tozer 5 3 3
Martin Whatefl® 2 2

@ Jeff Hewttt 15 not a director but 1s chairman of the Audit and Risk Commuttee

@ Appointed wath effect from 7 February 2011

* The number of meetings attended 15 affected by the date the elected directors joined or lefi the Board following the 2010
elecuons

% Appointed to the Audit and Risk Committee dunng the year

Day to day management of the business 1s delegated by the Parmership Board to the Chairman,
assisted by the Chairman’s Committee compnsing himself, the Finance Director, the Director of
Personnel, the two Divisional Managing Directors, the Director of Partnershup Services and the
Partners’ Counsellor The Chairman delegates the day to day management of the trading
dvisions to the two Managing Directors The Chairman’s Committee meets frequently as an
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Darectors’ report

continued

Board meeting and Committee attendance during the year (continued)

mformal commattee to develop strategy, business plans and budgets and review major operational
and management 1ssues, financial results and forecasts and proposals for investment and
development of the Partnership’s businesses There 1s a formal schedule of matters reserved for
the Board by means of which 1t oversees the Partnership’s affairs The Board 15 assisted 1n carrying
out 1ts supervisory and assurance responsibilities by 1ts committees The responsibilites and terms
of reference of the principal commttees are descnibed below The Board also delegates authority
to ad hoc commuttees 1o facihitate finalising matters within agreed parameters

Semor execuuves attend Board meetings as approprniate to support proposals on pohcy setting,
ivestments and the results and strategies of their business units Board members are given
appropnate and umely documentation in advance of each Board and commuttee meeting

In addition to formal Board meetings, the Chairman mamtains regular contact with all directors
through meetings of the Chairman’s Committee and imnformal meenngs with the elected, non-
executve and execuuve Board members and semor leadership group of Partners

The Board has approved a procedure for directors to take independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Partmership’s expense No such adwice was sought by any director duning the year

Corporate governance

The ultmate purpose of the John Lew:s Parinership 15 defined 1n 1ts consttution — “the happiness
of all 1ts members, through their worthwhile and satsfying employment in a successful business”
Its Principles and Rules encourage the widest possible sharing of profit, kntowledge and power by
all Partners and also set out the busmess’s responsinlities to ats suppliers, its customers and the
community in which it operates

The co-ownership character of the Partnership 1s reflected in the respective roles and responsibiiaes
of 1ts three governing authonnes, as established by the consatunon the Board of John Lews
Partnershuip plc (the Parmership Board), the elected Parmership Council and the Chairman

Our aim 1s to ensure that the co-owners are given the mnformaton they need to be able to deade
whether the Chairman, the Parmership Board and management are being effecuve Thus 1s through
the Partnership’s publications, including the weekly Gazette, and through its democranc elected
bod:es, in partcular the Parmership Counal

In addition to comphance with the system of governance and accountabihities established by its own
wrnitten consntution, the Partnership aims to apply the highest standards of corporate governance
and, although not obliged to do so, seeks to conform with the Principles set outn the June 2010 UK
Corporate Governance Code m a manner framed to suit its democratic ownership structure Dunng
2010/11 the Parmership comphed with the main principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code
with a few excepuons n areas in which the Partmership’s co-ownership model builds appropnate
accountability and checks Further explanation of how the Code’s principles have been appled 1s set
out below

Employees

The constitunion of the John Lewis Partnership prowvides for the democratic involvement of
employees, known as Partners, as ‘co-owners’ of the busmess They are therefore provided with full
informanon on all aspects of the business operanons and are encouraged to have an active interest
i promonng 1ts commercial success Elected councils and forums at all levels of the business
provide regular opportumties for management to report to Partners This provides opportunines
to quesuon management on any subject, while an open system of journahsm both contnbutes to
effecuve accountability and provides a means of sharing information extensively wath all Pariners
Partners also recerve an annual distnbunon of the profits of the business through Partnershup
bonus

All employees can benefit from the Partnership’s training and development policies The
Partership recruits people with disabilines to suitable vacancies on ment. Where disability occurs
during the penod of employment, every effort 1s made to contnue to provide suitable
employment with the provision of appropnate tramning
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Internal control

The directors have ulumate responsibility for the Parmership’s systems of internal control,
including nsk management, and also for reviewing their effectiveness In recogmuon of that
responsibility, the directors set policies and seek regular assurance that the system of internal
control 1s operanng effecavely Strategic, commeraial, operational, financial and health and safety
nisk areas are all included within the scope of these actvinies

The systems of internal control are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of faslure
to achieve business objectives In pursuing these objectives, internal controls can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatemnent or loss The directors have
recently reviewed the effectiveness of the Partnership’s systems of mternal control for the
accounting penod covered by this report

Board effectiveness

Where possible, having regard to its own consttutional arrangements, the Parmership aims to
substanually apply the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code 1n ensuring the
effectiveness of the Partnership Board The effecuveness of the Board and 1ts principal committees
15 evaluated on a regular basis

The combinauon of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer reflects the nature of
the Chairrman’s role under the terms of the Partnership’s consutunon The Chairman’s
responstbihues are clearly defined under the Partnership’s governance structure and mnclude
responsibihty for retaining the distinctive character and democranc vitality of the Partnershuip,
the leadership and management of the Partnership and the execution of the strategy approved
by the Board This structure provides for the Chairman to be accountable to the Partnership
Council constitutionally, and to the Partnership Board which chooses to delegate 1ts
management duties to him under the Compames Act 2006

On joining the Board, directors are given background information describing the Parmership
and 1ts acivities and they also recewve an induction pack of informauon relaung to the business
Meetngs are arranged with appropriate senior personnel, as well as site visits Traimng
seminars are held for the Board with recent topics being based around Pensions, including
Long Term Investment Strategy and the financial implicatons of operaung final salary non-
contnbutory Defined Benefit Pension Schemes External traiming 1s arranged as appropriate
Directors

Directors of the company at the date of this report are listed on page 28 The Partership
Council held elections 1n January 2010 in which Johnny Aisher, Anne Buckley and Kim Lowe
were re-elected as directors of the Partnership Board Dawid Jones and Marun Whitell did not
stand for re-clectton and therefore resigned with effect from 1 May 2010 Simon Fowler and
Tony Probert were clected as directors at 1 May 2010 Jane Tozer resigned as a non-executve
director with effect from 20 August 2010 Baroness Hogg and Dawvid Anderson were appointed
as non-executive directors with effect from 7 February 2011

External directorships of Executive Directors

The Remunerauon Committee has approved a policy relaung to the holding of externai
directorships The Board considers that executive directors can gain valuable expenence and
knowledge through such appointments For the year under review, the Chairman was a director
of the UK Commussion for Employment and Skalls, the Finance Director held positons at GFI
Group Inc, the Peabody Trust and the Accounung Standards Board, the Managmg Director,
John Lewis was a director of London First, the Managing Director, Waitrose was a director of
Channel Four Corporation and Chairman of Business in the Community, and the Partners’
Counsellor was a director of Ocado Limited and Ocado Group plc

Non-Executive Directors

The Board reviews the independence of all non-execunve directors annually and has determined that
Dawid Barctay conunues to be, and that Baroness Hogg and David Anderson were on appomntment
considered to be, independent and have no cross-directorships or significant inks which could
adversely interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The non-execuuve directors
are not Parmers They are not eligible to receve Partnership bonus or other benefits, and are not
members of the Parmership’s pension schemes, thereby underhming their independence
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Drrectors’ report

continued

Partners’ Counseflor

The Partners’ Counsellor monitors and upholds the integrity of the business, 1ts values and
ethics as enshrined in 1ts consutution He 1s a member of the Board and performs the role of
senior mdependent director 1n his interacuon with Partners as co-owners of the business He
supports the elected directors 1n their contnbuton to the Board as representauves of the
Parmers The Parters’ Counsellor convenes meetungs regularly with the elected directors,
without other executve directors bemng present

Terms of appointment

The elected directors are required to stand for re-clection every three years The non-execuuve
directors are appointed for an initial term of three years, which may be renewed subject to
sausfacnon on the part of both the directors concerned and the Board The terms and
conditions of appointment of the non-executive directors are avatlable on request from the
Dhrector of Legal Services and Company Secretary

Directors’ responsibilities

The Statement of directors’ responsibilities 1n relation to the financial statements 1s set out on
page 79

Drrectors’ interests

Under the constitution of the Partnership, the directors, apart from the three non-executive
directors, as employees of John Lews plc, are necessarily interested in the 612,000 Deferred
Ordinary Shares in John Lewts Partnership plc which are held in trust for the benefit of employees
of John Lews plc and of certain other compames

No director has, or had, a matenal interest in any contract or arrangement to which the company
or any subsidiary 1s, or was, a party

Board commuttees

The principal committees of the Partnership Board are the Audit and Risk Commttee, the
Remuneranon Committee and the Charrman’s Nominauons Commttee Each commuittee has
wntten terms of reference agreed by the Board and reviewed annually

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Commuittee 1s chaired by Jeff Hewitt, an independent external commuittee
member with relevant financial expenience The membership of the Committee changed duning
the year following the resignation of Jane Tozer Patrick Lews joined the Commuttee and Simon
Fowler replaced Marun Whitell as one of the elected director representatives In additon to the
chairman, the members are two of the five elected directors chosen by that group, currently
Johnny Aisher and Simon Fowler, together with Dawvid Barclay a non-executive director, and
Patrick Lewis Baroness Hogg and David Anderson will also join the Commutiee from July 2011
The external auditors attend the meetings of the Committee as does the Finance Director, the
Group Finanaal Controller, the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management and the Director of
Legal Services and Company Secretary Other execunves are invited to attend as appropnate and
the Committee meets at least annually with the external auditors and the Head of Internal Audit
and Risk Management without any executives being present.

The Committee meets four umes a year Its prinapal roles are assisung the Partnershup Board in the
discharge of 1ts responsibiliies 1n respect of statutory and financial reporting and reviewing and
momitoring the effecaveness of the group’s mternal controls and risk management systems,
monutoring the effectiveness of the group’s internal audit function, making recommendauons to the
Board on the appomtment and distmssal of the external audstors following an annual evaluanon of
therr performance, approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
and momtoring and reviewing the external auditors’ independence, objecuvity and effecuveness,
taking nto account professicnal and regulatory requirements The Commttee keeps under review
the nature and extent of non-audit services provided to the Partnership by the external auditors, and
recerves confirmanon from them, at least annually, that in their professional judgement they are
mndependent with respect to the aucit. The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management reports to
the Commttee tn addiuon to the Finance Director The Commuttee approves the Internal Audit work
programme for each year and considers the results of internal audit work
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The Directors have ulnmate responsibihity for the system of internal controls and the management of
nisk throughout the business, and also for reviewing its effectiveness, and delegate to the Audit and
Risk Commuttee the monitoring thereof Executive management s responsible for identfying and
evaluating the nsks of business operanons and for unplemenung and mamntaining systemns for
managing those nsks i an efficient and effecave manner through the business planning process
The Commuittee monitors the development of policies and systems for idenufying, evaluaung and
managing significant nisk throughout the group It also monitors management’s acuons to manage
those nisks and reports annually to the Board The operating divisions, John Lewss and Watrose,
Partmership Services and all corporate departments, include nisk assessments as part of their business
plans and quarterly reporung In addinon, the Partnership Board receives a monthly update on nsk
assessment from the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management. A procedure 15 1n place by which
Partners may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprneties in matters of financial
reporting or otherwise

Auditor independence and appomtment

The Board recognises that the independence of the external auchtor 1s a fundamental safeguard
for the interests of the Partnership’s shareholders The Audit and Risk Committee has a policy
which sets out the categortes of non-audit services that are prohibited and those that may be
undertaken by the external auditor subject to specific approval Prohibited services include
bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements and
internal audit services At each meetng the Audit and Risk Commuittee reviews the natre of all
non-audit engagements with the external auditor and the related costs It also reviews the
assurance provided by them regarding their independence and objecumty Details of the amounts
paud to the external auditors are given 1n note 5 to the accounts Having undertaken a review of
the non-audit services provided durnng the year, the Audit and Risk Commuttee 1s satnsfied that
these services did not prejudice the external auditors’ independence

As part of the approval process for the appomtment of the external auditors, the Audit and Risk
Commuttee 15 responsible for evaluatung their performance The Audit and Risk Commuttee has
performed this evaluanon and 1s sausfied that the external auditors continue to be effectve The
external auditors are required to rotate the audit partners responsible for the group audit every
five years In accordance with best pracuce guidelines the current audit parmer will step down
following the signing of the report and accounts for the year ended 29 January 2011 and her
responsibihines will be wransferred to another partner

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneratnon Committee 15 chaired by David Barclay, 2 non-execunve director and the
Partnership’s Deputy Charrman and also compnses Baroness Hogg, a non-executve director, and
two of the five directors elected by the Partnership Council, chosen by that group, currently Tony
Probert and Anne Buckley The Commuttee 1s supported by the Director of Personnel, assisted by
the Head of Reward, and an independent external remuneration consultant, Towers Watson, a
representauve of which attends 1ts meetings in an advisory capacity The Commuittee makes a
recommendaton each year to the Partnership Board on the Chairman’s pay and determines the
pay of the Partnership Board’s appointed directors on the basis of appropnate market data and
the recommendauon of the Chairman The Director of Personnel, on the adwice of the Chairman
and Towers Watson, the independent consultant, makes a recommendauon to the elected
members of the Remuneraton Commuttee on the fees of the non-execunve directors Members of
the Commuttee take no partin its deliberations with regard to their own remuneranon The
Commuttee considers the appropnateness of, and also makes a recommendaton to the
Parmership Board on, the broad policy for the remuneranon of senior Partners, on the adwvice of
the Director of Personnel, assisted by the Head of Reward The pay and employment conditons of
Partmers within the Parmership were taken into account when deterrmining directors’
remunerataon for the year

The salanes of elected members of the Partnership Board are determined by their managers and
do not include any element in recogmituon of their Partnership Board duties With the exception
of the non-executive directors, Partmership Board directors do not recerve fees as they are all paid
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Directors’ report

continued

Remuneration Committee (confinued)

a salary for therr respective roles within the business, tn accordance with the Partnership’s pay
policy There are no annual mcenuve bonuses or long-term bonus schemes related 1o indmvdual
performance Detals of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8

Chairman’s Nominatuons Committee

The Chairman’s Nomimnauons Commuiuee was estabhshed in May 2010 Itis chaired by the
Partnership’s Chairman and also compnses David Barclay, a non-execunve director and the
Partnership’s Deputy Charrman, David Anderson, a non-executve director, and two of the five
directors elected by the Partnerstup Council, chosen by that group, currently Kim Lowe and
Johnny Aisher The Committee meets at least twice a year and 1s supported by the Director of
Personnel and, as required, independent consuliants Each year, the Commutiee reviews the
structure, size and composiaon (incluchng the skills, knowledge and experience required} of the
Partnershup Board and makes recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes It
oversees the appoinument of successors to the Chairman and Deputy Chairman, reviews the
Chairman’s proposals for any appointment of Executive Directors and the succession planning
process for Executive Directors and other senior roles, including the Deputy Chairrman The
Commiutiee also idennfies and recommends for the approval of the Partnership Board, candidates
as non-executive directors, reviews the ame commitment required from non-executve directors
and makes recommendauons concerning the re-appomtment of any non-executive director at the
conclusion of their specified term of office The Commuttee also momtors the ongoing training
and development requirements of the Board’s directors, both indimdually and as a whole, in order
to ensure that they can fulfil their responsibilities

Group Secretary

The Director of Legal Services and Company Secretary, 1s responsible for advising the Board on all
corporate governance matters, ensurning that Board procedures are followed, ensunng good
informanon flow, facihitaung inducton programmes for direciors and assistung with directors’
conunwing professional development. All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Drrector of Legal Services and Company Secretary

Treasury and tax policy and financial risk management

The Board approves the group’s reasury, tax and financial nsk management policies, which are
delegated to the Parmership’s Finance Director and Tax and Treasury team to1implement and
control Further details of the group’s financial risk management arrangements are provided in
the Business Review and note 22 to the financal statements

Payments to suppliers

The Partmership’s policy on the payment of 1ts suppliers 1s to agree terms of payment 1n advance
and, prownided a suppher fulfils the agreement, to pay promptly in accordance with those terms
The Partmership’s trade creditors at 29 January 2011 were equivalent to 24 days of average
purchases (2010 22 days)

Corporate Social Responsibility

The terms of the Partnership’s constitunon clearly define the behaviour expected towards customers,
supphers, the environment, the wider commumty and 1ts Partners Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) programmes and governance structures have been developed from these provisions and the
principal responsibility for managing and co-ordinaung social, ethical and environmental issues
resides with the Partnership’s Director of Personnel In additon, the Parmership has a Responsible
Business Group, a management committee which 15 chaired by the Chairman and compnses several
mermbers of senior management. Its purpose 15 to co-ordinate the Parmershup’s CSR pohcy and
strategy and to momitor and review performance More detarled informanon on the Partnership’s
CSR policies and procedures 1s set out in the Busmess Review, and copies of 1ts pubhshed CSR reports
can be found on the Partmership website, wunnjohnleunspartnershap co vk

Charitable and political donations

The Parmership donated £4,695,000 (2010 £3,943,000) for chantable purposes during the year,
compnsing £4,170,000 (2010 £3,343,000) for welfare causes and £525,000 (2010 £600,000) for
music and arts, learning and the environment In additon, we provided substanual financial and
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practical support {0 causes 1n the commun:iuies where we trade, as detailed on pages 19 and 20 of
the Business Review The Partnership made no pohucal donatons

Retail bond 1ssue

On 7 March 2011 the group launched a retail bond, a five year investment product offering a
fixed annual return of 4 5% n cash and a further 2% n John Lews Partnership gift vouchers The
retail bond issue closed on 18 March 2G11 after reaching 1ts investment target of £60m, and was
1ssued on 6 April 2011

Dhvidends
Dividends on Preference Shares for 2011 were £222,000 (2010 £222,000) Dmdends on SIP shares
{1ssued in connection with the BonusSave scheme) for 2011 were £1,268,000 (2010 £1,130,900)

Purchase of shares

Ax the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2010, the company was authonsed to make market
purchases of up to £3,696,995 nominal of the 5% Cumulauve Preference Stock and up to
£500,000 nominal of the 7 5% Cumulauve Preference Stock represenung the remaining stock 1n
1ssue No purchases were made during the year and shareholders will be invited to renew the
authornty at the annual general meeung, as detailled on page 83 The Board considers that these
stocks are an inefficient form of fixed mnterest finance and that it would be advantageous to the
company to acquire them over ume, as suitable opportunities arise

Gomg concern

The Directors, after reviewing the group’s operaung budgets, investment plans and financing
arrangements, consider that the company and the group have adequate resources to contunue 1n
operation for the foreseeable future A full description of the group’s business acuvities, financial
posinon, cash flows, hquidity posiion, commmutted facihties and borrowing position, together with
the factors hkely to affect us future development and performance, 1s set out in the Business
Review and 1n the notes to the accounts The company and group have, at the date of this report,
sufficient financing available for their esumated requirements for the foreseeable future and,
accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that 1t 1s appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements

Auditors and dusclosure of mformation to auditors
A resolunon to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors and to authonse the directors
to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the annual general meenng

The directors of the group have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directorsin

order to make themselves aware of any information needed by the group’s auditors in connection
with prepanng their repert and to establish that the auditors are aware of that informauon So far
as the chirectors are aware there 15 no such informanon of which the group’s auditors are unaware

For and by Order of the Beard
Margaret Casely-Hayford
Secretary

7 Apnl 2011
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Consolidated imcome

statement

for the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to

29 January 30 January

2011 2010

Notes Continuing operations £m £m
2 Gross sales 8,206.3 7,421 5
2 Revenue 7,361 8 6,734 6
Cost of sales (4,878 7) (4,460 4)
Gross profit 24831 2,274 2
Other operating income 537 511

3 Operating expenses (2,105.8) (1,935 6}
2 Operating profit 431 0 3897
4 Finance costs (69 3) (89 0)
4 Finance income 62 59
Profit before Partnership bonus and tax 367.9 306 6
Partnership bonus (194 5) {151 3)

5  Profit before tax 1734 155 3
6  Taxahon (46 0) (48 8)
Profit for the year 127.4 106 5
The notes on pages 43 to 78 form part of these financial statements
for the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to

29 January 30 January

2011 2010

Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 127 4 106 5

Other comprehensive income/(expense}

24 Actuanal gainf(loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 338.7 (160 4)
6 Movement of deferred tax on pension schemes (141 4) 223
6 Movemnent of current tax on pension schemes 420 226
Net gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges 16 (9 3)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 368.3 (18 3)
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 29 January 2011
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
10 Intangible assets 111.4 925
11 Property, plant and equipment 3,622.6 3,391 0
14 Trade and other recevables 41 4 42 5
21 Deferred tax asset - 419
37754 3,567 ¢
Current assets
13 Inventories 422 0O 3990
14 Trade and other recevables 2109 167 6
Current tax recevable 170 -
23 Denvative financial instruments 86 136
15 Cash and cash equivalents 5127 5600
1,171 2 1,140 2
Total assets 4,946.6 4,708 1
Current habilities
17 Borrowings and overdrafts {165.3) (115 6)
18 Trade and other payables {1,031 9) {886 6)
Current tax payable - (17
19 Finance lease habilibies (0 8) {07
20 Provisions (85 0) (68 5}
23 Denvative financial instruments {10 (2 4)

(1,284 0) (1,075 5)

Non-current Llabilities

17 Borrowings (874.6) (828 8)
18 Trade and other payables (65 &) (49 9)
19 Finance lease habihities (28 0) (28 5)
20 Provisions (112 9) (116 3)
21 Deferred tax habilities (94 7) -
24 Retirement benefit obligations (414.0) (904 6)
(1,589 8) (1,928 1)
Total habilities (2,873 8) (3,003 6)
Net assets 20728 1,704 5
Equity
26 Share capital 06 06
Other reserves 64 48
Retained earnings 2,065 4 1,698 7
Minonty interest in subsidiary 04 04
Total equity 2,072.8 1,704 5

Approved by the Board on 7 Apnl 2011 M
Charlie Mayfield —A

Marisa Cassoni

Directors * .
M U~ Cu >y~
John Lewis Partnership plc Registered number 00238937
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Balance sheet of the company

as at 29 January 2011

2011 2010

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets

12 Investments 70.2 56 2
Total assets 70 2 562
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (1.4) (13)
Non-current habilities

17 Borrowings 577 (43 9)
Total habilities (59 1) (45 2)
Net assets 111 110
Equity

26 Share capital 06 06
Other reserves 5.0 50
Retained earnings 55 54
Total equity 11.1 110

Approved by the Board on 7 Apnl 2011

Charlie Mayfield

Mansa Cassoni
MW\&L‘ C»'b')af-‘--

Directors
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Consolidated and company

statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 29 January 2011

Capital

Share redemption  Capital Hedging Retaned Minonty Total

capital reserve reserve reserve  €arnings  interests equity
Consolidated £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 31 January 2009 06 50 14 77 17077 0417228
Profit for the year - - - - 1065 - 1065
Actuanal loss on defined benefit
pensicn schemes - - - - (160 4) - (ieC 4}
Tax on above items recognised
In equity - - - ~ 44 9 - 449
Fair value losses on cash flow
hedges - - - (81 - - 81)
- Transfers to property,

plant and equipment - - - (13) - - (13)
— Transfers to inventores - - - 01 - - 01
Balance at 30 January 2010 06 50 14 (16) 16987 0417045
Profit for the year - - - ~- 1274 - 127 4
Actuanal gain on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - 3387 - 3387
Tax on above tems recognised
In eguity - - - - (99 4) - (994)
Fair value losses on cash flow
hedges - - - (11} - - {11)
— Transfers to property,
plant and equipment - - - - - - -

— Transfers to inventones - - - 27 - - 27
Balance at 29 January 2011 06 50 14 - 2,065 4 04 20728

Retained earmings compnse £1,649 9m (2010 £1,273 7m) of distnibutable and £415 5m
(2010 £425 0m) of non distributable reserves

Capita!

Share  redemption Retamed Total

capital reserve earnings equity
Company £m £m £m £m
Balance at 31 Januvary 2009 06 50 55 111
Loss for the year - - (01) 01)
Balance at 30 January 2010 06 50 54 110
Profit for the year - - 01 01
Balance at 29 January 2011 06 50 55 11.1
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Statement of consolidated
cash flows

for the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
27 Cash generated from operations 7451 647 6
Net taxation paid (27 5) (40 4)
Partnership bonus paid (151 2) (124 3)
Spectal contnbution to the Pension Scheme (150 0) -
Finance costs paid (20) Q7
Net cash generated from operating activities 414 4 482 2
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (447.9) (410 3
Purchase of intangible assets (43 5) {33 2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 37 71
Finance income receved 3.1 54
Net cash used n investing activities (484 6) (431 0)
Cash flows from financing activibes
Finance costs In respect of bonds (76 7} (10 5)
Payment of capital element of finance leases (0 4) (06)
Payments to preference shareholders (0.2} 02)
Payments to SIP shareholders (11) (15)
Cash inflow from borrowings 151.6 284 2
Net cash generated from financing activities 732 2714
Increase in net cash and cash equivalents 30 3226
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 444 4 1218
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of perod 447 4 444 4
15 Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash 84.2 841
Short-term investments 428 5 4759
Bank overdraft (65.3) (115 6)
447.4 444 4

There are no cash movements for the parent company and, accordingly, no cash flow
statement 1s presented
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Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

Accounung convention and basis of consolidation

The accounts are prepared under the histoncal cost convention, with the exception of certain
land and buldings which are included at their revalued amounts and financial assets and financial
hahlites (including derivauve instruments) vatued at fair value through profit and loss, and 1n
accordance with Internauonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and wath those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporung under
IFRS The consolidated income statement and balance sheet include the accounts of the company
and all 1ts subsidiary undertakings

Business components that represent major lines of business or geographical areas of operations
are recogmsed as disconunued if the operauons have been disposed of, are bemng abandoned or
meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale

The preparaucn of consohidated financial statements in conformity wath Internanonal Financial
Reportng Standards requires the use of esimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabihines at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporung penod Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual
results ulumately may differ from those esimates

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

The following standards, amendments and interpretanons were adopted by the group from
31 January 2010 and have not had a significant impact on the group’s profit for the year, equity or
disclosures

— [IFRS 3 (revised) ‘Business combinanons’
— IAS 27 (revised) ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’
-~ Annual improvements 2009

- Amendments to [AS 39 ‘Financial instruments Recognition and measurement’ on ehgble
hedged 1tems

There are a number of new accounting standards and amendments to existing standards that
have been published and are applicable for the group’s accountng periods beginning on or after
30 January 2011 or later penods, but which the group has not adopted early These are as follows

— IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

— IAS 24 (rewised) ‘Related party disclosures’

— Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial mmstruments Disclosures’ on derecogniuon
— Amendment to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ on deferred tax

— Amendment to IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 — The hmit on a defined benefit asset, mmmimum funding
requirements and their interactions’

These are not expected to have a material impact on the group’s profit or equity for future years,
but may affect disclosures
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Notes to the accounts

contitnued

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Gross sales and revenue
Gross sales are the amounts receivable by the group for goods and services supplied to customers,
net of discounts but including sale or return sales and VAT

Sales of goods and services are recognised as revenue when the goods have been delivered or the
services rendered Revenue 1n respect of ‘sale or return sales’ which represents concession income
15 stated at the value of the margin that the group receives on the transacuon Staff discounts

are deducted from revenue Revenue 1s recognised 1n respect of sales under bill and hold
arrangements when the goods are segregated for the customer’s benefit at their request, and
made available for delivery Sales of gift vouchers are treated as future habihiues, and revenue 1s
recogmsed when the gift vouchers are redeemed against a later transacion Certain compames
within the group sell products wath a nght of return, and expenence 1s used to esumate and
provide for the value of such returns at the me of sale

Inventory valuation

Inventory 1s stated at the lower of cost, which 1s computed on the basis of average unit cost, and
net realisable value Inventory excludes merchandise purchased by the group on a sale or return
basis, where the group does not have the nisks and rewards of ownership

Employee benefits

The group’s principal reurement benefit scheme 1s a defined benefit pension fund with assets held
separately from the group The cost of providing benefits under the scheme 1s determined using
the projected unit credit actuanal valuatnon method, which measures the hability based on service
completed and allowing for projected future salary increases The current service cost, which 15
the increase in the present value of the retirement benefit obliganon resulung from employee
service 1n the current year, and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments, which arise on
transactions that eliminate part or all of the benefits pronded or when there are amendments to
terms such that a significant element of future service will no longer qualify for benefits or wall
quabfy only for reduced benefits, are included 1in operating expenses in the consohidated income
statement Past service costs are similarly included where the benefits have vested, otherwise they
are amortsed on a straight-line basis over the vesung perod

The expected return on assets of funded defined benefit pension plans and the imputed interest
on pension plan hahnoes are included 1in finance costs

Differences between the actual and expected return on assets, changes in the reurement benefit
obligation due to expenence and changes 1n actuanal assumptions are mcluded as actuanal gains or
losses 1n the consohdated statement of comprehensive expense and income 1n full in the penod 1n
which they anse

There are a number of unfunded pension habilities, where the actuanally assessed costs of
provniding the benefit are charged to the income statement There are no assets supporting these
arrangements

The group has a scheme to provide up to s1ix months paid leave afier 25 years’ service (long service
leave) The costs of providing the benefits under the scheme 1s determined actuanally The current
service cost 15 included in operating expenses in the consolidated income statement The financing
elements of long service leave are included 1n finance costs in the consohdated income staternent

Property valuation

The group’s freehold and long leasehold properues were last valued by the directors, after
consultation with CB Richard Elhs, Chartered Surveyors, at 31 January 2004, at fair value This
valuation was as at transinon to IFRS These values have been mcorporated as deemed cost, subject
to the requirement to test for impairment, 1n accordance with IAS 36 The group decided not to
adopt a policy of revaluation since 31 January 2004

Other assets are held at cost
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Depreaation

No depreciation 15 charged on freehold land, leasehold land wath over 100 years to expiry, and
assets in the course of construction Depreciation 1s calculated for all other assets to write off the
cost or valuation, less residual value, in equal annual instalments over thewr expected useful hfe,
at the following rates

Frechold and long leaschold buildings — 2% 10 4%

Other leaseholds — over the remaimning penod of the lease

Buildings fixtures - 2 5% to 10%

Fixtures and fitngs (including vehicles and IT equpment} — 10% to 33%

Property residual values are assessed as the price 1n current terms that a property would be
expected to reahse, if the buildings were at the end of their useful economic hife The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date

Leased assets

Assets used by the group which have been funded through finance leases on terms that wransfer o
the group substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership are capitalised at the inception of
the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the mimimum lease
payments Lease payments are apporuoned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
hability so as to achieve a constant rate of mnterest on the remaining balance of the hiability The
interest element of finance lease rentals 1s charged to the income statement Capitalised leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the esumated useful hife of the asset or the lease term

Leases where the group does not retain substanually all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are classified as operaung leases Operaung lease rental payments, other than conungent
rentals, are recogrused as an expense 1n the mncome statement on a straight-ine basis over the
lease term Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense 1n the income statement when
incurred

Lease premiums and inducements are recognised in current and non-current assets or habiliues
accordingly, and amortsed or released on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Sub-lease income 1s recognised as iIncome on a straight-hne basts over the sub-lease term, less
allowances for situations where recovery 1s doubtful

Taxation

The charge for current income tax 1s based on the results for the year as adjusted for tems which
are not taxed or are disallowed It 1s calculated using tax rates in legislaton that has been enacted
or substanuvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s accounted for using the balance sheet habihity method in respect of
temporary differences ansing from differences between the tax bases of assets and habiliues

and thewr carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax ansing from the mmital
recognition of an asset or habihty in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the
ume of the ransacuon affects neither accounung nor taxable profit or loss, 1s not recogrsed

In principle, deferred tax habilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deducnble temporary differences can be uulised

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset
1s realised or the habihity 1s settled Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement,
except when 1t relates to 1tems credited or charged directly to shareholder’s equaty, in which case
the deferred tax 1s also dealt with 1n shareholder’s equity

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combinauon over the group’s share of the
fair value of 1denufiable net assets of the business acquuired at the date of acquisinon Pnor to
February 1998 goodwll ansing on the acquisition of subsidiaries was written off to reserves at the
ume of acquisibon The group has taken the IFRS 1 exemption mn respect of the treatment of
goodwill and, accordingly, goodwill on previous acquisitions has not been restated
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Notes to the accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, compnsing both purchased and internally developed computer software, are
carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and mmpairments The cost of internally developed
software, including all directly attnbutable costs necessary to produce and prepare the system for
use, 1s capitalised where the development meets the critena for capitalisation required by IAS 38
Internally developed software assets that are not yet 1n use are reviewed at each reportung date

to ensure that the development sull meets the cntena for capitalisation, and 1s not expected to
become mmpaired or aboruave Once available for use, the purchased or internally developed
software 1s amorused over 1ts useful economic life, which 1s deemed to be between 3 and 7 years

Finanaal instruments

The group uses denvauve financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to fluctuations m foreign
exchange rates and interest rates Denvauve financial instruments used by the group mclude mnterest
rate swaps, forward currency contracts and foreign currency swaps Hedge accounting has been
adopted for dervative financial instruments where possible Such denvative financial mmstruments are
measured at fair value The fair value of a denvanve financial instrument represents the difference
between the value of the outstanding contracts at their contracted rates and a valuation calculated
using the forward rates of exchange and interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

In order to qualify for hedge accounung, the relanonship between the item being hedged and the
hedging msoument 1s documented in advance of entering mto the hedge, and assessed to show that
the hedge will be highly effecuve on an ongoing basis Thus effecuveness tesung 1s reperformed at
each period end to ensure that the hedge remains hughly effecave

Hedge accountng 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument matures, 1s sold, terminated
or exercised, the designanon 1s revoked or 1t no longer qualifies for hedge accounung For
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses ansing from changes
in fair value are taken directly to the income statement

A fair value hedge 15 a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or hability
Denvative financial instruments qualifying for fair value hedge accounting are principally interest
rate swaps

A cash flow hedge 1s a hedge of the exposure to variability of cash flows that are either aurbutable
to a particular nisk associated with a recognised asset or lhiability, or a highly probable forecast
transaction The effective pornon of changes n the intrinsic fair value of derivauves that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity All other changes in fair
value are recognised immediately in the income statement with other gans or losses Amounts
accumulated 1n equuty are recycled to the income statement 1n the periods when the hedged 1tem
affects profit or loss Denvanve financial instruments qualifinng for cash flow hedge accounting
are principally forward currency contracts

Borrowings
Borrowings are measured at amortised cost Where there 1s an effective related fair value hedge,

the movement n the fair value attnbutable to the hedged risk 1s separately disclosed

Loan arrangement costs in respect of debt are capitalised and amortised over the hfe of the debt
at a constant rate Finance costs are charged to the income statement, based on the effecuve
mterest rate of the associated borrowings

Insurance

The group's captive insurance company, JLP Insurance Limited, provides remnsurance of the
group’s employer’s, pubhic and vehicle third party hability insurances, and of the group’s
healthcare msurance cover It also insures ServicePlan Limited, and remsures Landmark Insurance
Company Limiuted, third party providers of extended warranty products to customers of John

Lewis For the hability insurances, the results of each underwriting year are estmated at the year
end using mdependent actuanal assessments, when any profits or losses ansing are recogmsed
Other classes are also accounted for on an annual basis, with unearned prem:ums attributed

to unexpired periods of insurance at the year end

46




John Lewis Partnership plc annual report and accounts 2011

Impairment

Assets that are subject to amornsation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss

15 recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount,
the latter being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use Value 1n use
calculations are performed using cash flow projecuons, discounted at a pre-tax rate which reflects
the asset specific nisks and the ume value of money

Exceptional items

Items which are both material and non-recurnng are presented as excepuonal 1tems within their
relevant consolidated income statement category The separate reporung of exceptional 1temns
helps provide an indicauon of the group’s underlying business performance Events which may
giwve rise to the classification of 1tems as exceptional include gains or losses on the disposal of
properues or investments, indmdually significant restructuning costs and asset impairments

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has an oblhigauon 1n respect of a past event, 1t 1s more
likely than not that payment (or a non cash settlement) will be required to settle the obligation
and where the amount can be reliably esumated Provisions are discounted when the time value
of money 15 considered materal

Partnership bonus

Partnership bonus, determined 1n relation to the results for the previous financial year, 1s paid to
Partners each March No prowision 1s made for Partnership bonus at the haif year as the majonty
of the group’s profit 15 earned n the second half year and, unul the annual profit 1s known, 1t 1s
not possible to make an esimate of the habihty A provision for this bonus 1s included in the year
end accounts, with the amount confirmed by the Board shortly after the year end

Offsetung

Balance sheet netung only occurs to the extent that there 1s the legal ability and intention to settle
net As such, bank overdrafts are presented in current habihiues to the extent that there 1s no
intenuon to offset with any cash balances

Foreign currencies

Transactions denommated 1n foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date
of the wansaction Foreign currency assets and hiabilities held at the year end are translated into
sterhng at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compnse cash at bank and 1n hand and short-term
deposits with matunities of less than 90 days In the consohdated cash flow statement, net cash and
cash equivalents compnse cash and cash equivalents, as defined above, net of bank overdrafts

Net debt
Net debt mcorporates the group’s borrowings, bank overdrafis, fair value of denivauves and
obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other recewvables are stated at amorunsed cost less allowances for situanons where
recovery 15 doubtful Such allowances are based on an indmvidual assessment of each receivable

Investments
Investments are valued at cost, less allowances for impairment

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Esumates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and
other relevant factors, mcluding expectanons of future events that are beheved to be reasonable
under the carcumstances
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Notes to the accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies (continued)

The preparanion of the financial statements requires management to make esumates and
assumptions concermng the future The resulung accounung esumates will, by definiuon,
be likely to differ from the reiated actual results The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Retrrement benefits

Pension accounting requires certain assumptions to be made 1n order to value our
obhganons and to determine the charges to be made to the income statement These figures
are particularly sensitive to assumptions for discount rates, mortalty, inflation rates and
expected long-term rates of return on assets Detals of assumptions are given in note 24

Promsions

Provisions recognised at the balance sheet date are detmled 1n note 20 and include amounts
for long leave, insurance claims, service guarantee costs, reorganisation costs, accrued
holiday pay and property related costs

Although provisions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted to reflect management's
best current esimates the judgemental nature of these 1tems means that future amounts
settled may be different from those provided

Imparrment

The group 1s required to test whether assets in use m operattions have suffered any
mmpairment The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined based
on the hagher of fawr value less costs to sell and value 1n use The calculation of value n use
requires the esumation of future cash flows expected to anse from the conunuing operation
of the cash generanng umt and the selecuon of a sustable discount rate 1n order to calculate
the present value Given the degree of subjecuvity involved, actual outcomes could vary
significanty from these esumates

2 Segmental reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, an operaung segment 1s defined as a
business activity whose operating results are reviewed by the chief operaung decision
maker (‘CODM") and for which discrete informauon 1s available The group’s CODM 1s
the Partnership Board

The group’s operating segments have been 1dentified as John Lewts, Waitrose and Corporate
and other Corporate and other principally includes corporate and shared service overheads,
transformation costs and the new Partnership Services division set up costs The operaung

profit of each segment 1s reported after charging relevant corporate and shared service costs
based on the business segments’ usage of corporate and shared service facihues and services
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2 Segmental reporting {continued)

Corperate
Waitrose John Lewis and other Group
29 January 2011 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 4,974 6 3,231.7 - 8,206 3
Adjustment far sale or return sales - (116 0) - (116 0)
Value added tax (274.7) (453.8) - (728 5)
Revenue 4,699.9 2,661.9 - 7,361 8
Operating profit excluding property profits 2730 201.2 (45 1) 4291
Property profits 19 -~ - 1.9
Operating profit 2749 201 2 (45 1) 431.0
Finance costs - - (69 3) (69 3)
Finance income - - 62 62
Partnership bonus - - (194 5) (194 5)
Profit before tax 2749 201 2 (302.7) 1734
Taxation - - (46 0) (46.0)
Profit after tax 274 9 201.2 (348 7) 127 4
Segment assets 2,520 2 1,597.9 8285 4,946.6
Segment habilities (490 8) (467.7) (1,915.3) (2,873 8)
Net assets 2,029 4 1,1302 (1,0868) 2,0728
Other segment items
— Depreciation 1221 81.2 122 215.5
- Amortisation of intangible assets 84 86 7.0 240
- Capital expenditure — property, plant and
equipment 3338 97.5 17 9 449 2
— Capital expenditure — intangible assets 202 22.0 13 43.5
~ Movement in provistons 20 9.4 57 131
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Notes to the accounts

continued

2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Corporate
Waitrose John Lewis and other Group

30 January 2010 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 4,532 3 2,889 2 - 7,421 5
Adjustment for sale or return sales - (116 5) - (116 5)
Value added tax (215 1) (355 3) - (570 4)
Revenue 4317 2 2,417 4 - 6,734 6
Operating profit excluding property profits 266 6 164 7 (41 B) 3895
Property profits 02 - - 02
Operating profit 266 8 1647 (41 8) 3897
Finance costs - - (89 0} (89 0)
Finance income - - 59 59
Partnership bonus - - (151 3) (151 3)
Profit befare tax 266 8 164 7 (276 2} 155 3
Taxation - - (48 8) (48 8)
Profit after tax 2668 164 7 (325 0) 106 5
Segment assets 22717 1,652 3 884 1 4,708 1
Segrnent labilities (454 2) (4069) (2,1425) (3,0036)
Net assets 1,817 5 1,1454 (1,258 4) 1,704 5
Other segment items
— Depreciation 1057 725 117 1899
— Amortisation of intangible assets 87 89 68 24 4
— Capital expendrture — property, plant and

equipment 2927 1007 185 4119
— Capital expenditure — intangible assets 108 111 113 332
— Movement in provisions {03) 44 16 2 203

The comparatves have been re-presented to allocate certain shared service costs on a

conststent basis to the current year
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3 Operating expenses

2011 2010
£m £m
Branch operating expenses 1,551.7 1,501 8
Administrative expenses 431.2 3349
Pension costs 122 9 98 9
2,105 8 1,9356
4 Net finance costs
2011 2010
£m £m
Finance costs
Interest payable on
Bank loans and overdrafts 20 23
Other loans repayable within 5 years 167 232
Other loans repayable in more than 5 years 326 188
Finance lease interest payable 13 14
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bonds 11 11
Preference dividends 03 03
SIP dividends 13 12
Finance costs in respect of borrowings 553 48 3
Premium paid on bond redemption 92 -
Total finance costs in respect of borrowings 645 48 3
Fair value measurements and other 01 0%
Net finance costs ansing on defined benefit retirement schemes (note 24) - 246
Net finance costs ansing on other employee benefit schemes 47 156
Total finance costs 69 3 890
Fmance income
Interest recevable (2.7} (37)
Preference dividends (0.1) (01)
Finance income n respect of investments {(2.8) (3 8)
Fair value measurements and cother (09) 21
Net finance income ansing on defined benefit retirement schemes {note 24} (2.5) -
Total finance income (6.2) (59}
Net finance costs 631 831
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Notes to the accounts

continued

4 Net finance costs (continued)

2011 2010
£m £m
Finance costs n respect of borrowings 553 48 3
Premium paid on bond redemption 9.2 -
Finance income n respect of investments (2 8) 38
Net finance costs 1n respect of borrowings and investments 617 44 5
Fair value measurements and other (08) (16)
Net finance (tncome)/costs ansing on defined benefit retirement schemes 2.5) 24 6
Net finance costs ansing on other employee benefit schemes 4.7 156
Net finance costs 63.1 831
5 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
2011 2010
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting) the following
Staff costs (note 9) 14258 11,2690
Depreciation — owned assets 2149 189 3
Depreciation — assets held under finance leases 06 06
Amortisation of intangible assets 24.0 24 4
Profit on sale of property (1.9) (02)
Loss on disposal of other tangible and intangible fixed assets 09 23
Inventory — cost of inventory recognised as an expense 48787 4,4604
Restructuning costs 9.0 17 0
Operating lease rentals
- fand and buldings 106 7 97 1
- plant and machinery 0.3 05
Sub lease income
— land and buildings 47 (4 6)
Fees payable to the group's auditors for audit services
pursuant to legislation
- parent company and group audit 03 03
— subsidiary audits 04 04
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and its associates
for other services
— taxation services o1 -
— other non-audit services 03 03

In additon to the above, the group’s auditors also acted as auditors to the group’s pension
schemes The aggregate fee for audit services to the pension schemes during the year was

£50,600 (2010 £47,600)

Conungency rents expensed during the year were £6 1m (2010 £59m) Conungency rents

are determined based on store revenues
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6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2011 2010
Analysis of tax charge £m £m
Corporation tax ~ current year 62 2 56 6
Corporation tax — prior years (11.4) (9 9)
Total current tax charge 508 46 7
Deferred tax — current year (10 7) (21)
Deferred tax — prior years 59 42
46 0 48 8
2011 2019
Tax credited to equity £m £m
Deferred tax on pension habibty 141 4 (22 3)
Current tax on pension ltability (42 Q) (22 &)
99.4 {44 )

The tax charge for the penod 1s lower (2010 higher) than the standard corporation tax rate
of 28 0% (2010 28 0%) The differences are explained below

2011 2010
£m £m
Profit before tax 173.4 155 3
Profit before tax multiphed by standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 28% (2010 28%) 48 6 435
Effects of
Adjustment to current tax in respect of prior years (11 4) (9 9)
Restatement of deferred tax balances for reduction in the
corporabion tax rate to 27% 72 -
Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax relief 12.3 127
Difference between accounting and tax base for land and builldings (2 8) (2 6)
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior years 59 42
Sundry disallowables 06 c9
Total tax charge 46 0 48 8

The Finance (No 2) Act reduced the maimn rate of corporauon tax from 28% to 27% from
1 Apnl 2011 In his budget dated 23 March 2011 the Chancellor announced a further 1%
reducuon to the main rate of corporauon tax from 27% to 26% cffecuve 1 Apnil 2011
Further reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to
23% by 1 Apnil 2014 The further 1% reducuon announced on 23 March 2011 and the
remaining rate changes had not been substantively enacted at the end of the reporung
pertod and therefore, are not reflected i the consolhidated accounts

The effect of the rate change on the current year was to reduce the deferred tax hability by

£3 5m with a £3 7m charge bemng taken directly to reserves and a £7 2m tax credit to the
mcome statement The impact of the rate change will be higher in the year ending 28 January
2012 due to the accelerated rate change announced in the budget dated 23 March 2011,
reflecang a 2% reducuon 1n that year, assurming the 1% per annum reductons are substanuvely
enacted annually and a comparable level of deferred tax Adjustments in future years are
expected to be of a smilar amount to the year ended 29 January 2011, assuming the 1% per
annum reductons are substantively enacted annually and a comparable level of deferred tax
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7 Profit and loss for the financial year

As permmtted by Secuon 408 of the Companies Act 2006, John Lewis Partnership plc has not
presented 1ts own profit and loss account The result dealt with 1n the accounts of the
company amounted to £0 1m loss (2010 £0 1m loss)

8 Directors’ emoluments

2011 2010
£000 £000
Directors’ remuneration including Partnerstup bonus of 18% (2010 15%) 3,988 3,574

The emoluments of the Chairman, who was also the highest paid director, were

£950,000 (2010 £868,000), including Parmership bonus of £142,000 (2010 £111,000) The
Chairman’s aggregate pension enutlement from the age of 60 accrued at the end of the year
was £214,000 per annum (2010 £197,000 per annum} The transfer value of the increase

n accrued enttlement during the year was £143,000

The remuneration and benefits of five directors who are elected to the Board are excluded
throughout this note on the basis that no part of their remunerauon relates to their service
as a member of the Board Excluding pension fund contritbuuons and pension supplements
i lieu of future pension accrual, but including Partnership bonus, the emoluments of the
other indmdual directors, excluding the Chairman, who served on the Board dunng any
part of the year, were as follows

2011 2010 2011 2010
£1 - £50,000 1 - £550,001 - £600,000 - 2
£50,001 - £100,000 1 2 £600,001 - £650,000 1 i
£350,001 - £400,000 - 1 £650,001 - £700,000 1 -
£400,001 - £450,000 1 1 £700,001 - £750,000 1 -
£450,001 - £500,000 1 -

Contracts of employment for the Chairman and five directors provide for a notice period
of one year Contracts for all other directors provide for between three and six months’
notce

Excluding the five directors who are elected to the Board, six members of the Board quahfy
for the annual distnbution of profit in Partnership bonus, paid at the same percentage of
pay as for any Parmer in employment on 31 January

The Charrman and five members of the Board who served duning the year were enutled
to the use of a company car, or us cash equivalent They also benefited from private medical
msurance paid by the Partnership

There have been changes to the pensions arrangements for six members of the Board,
mcluding the Chairman, during the year ended 29 January 2011, as explained below

Five directors belong to the group’s non-contnbutory pension scheme and also to the senior
pension scheme, which provides addinonal benefits intended to produce a total pension
worth two-thirds of pensionable pay on retirement at age 60, after at least 20 or 30 years’
service, depending on the level of benefit From Apnl 2010, these five directors became
deferred members of both schemes and therefore accrue no further pension benefit in
those schemes One other directer did not parucipate in the group's non-contributory
pension scheme, but had an unfunded defined contribution arrangement under which the
group accrued contnbutions The contnbutions for the period to 31 March 2010 were
£88,000 and for the year ended 30 January 2010 were £337,000
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8 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Following changes to pension legislaton 1n Aprl 2006, five directors opted to have part of
their pension benefit provided on an unfunded basts, and the Partnershtp gave
undertakings that these directors would have their pension made up to the same level as
that provided by the senior pension scheme In Apnl 2010, the unfunded pension accrued
for two directors was settled through a cash settlement Two directors retamned their
unfunded pension accrued as at that date and provision has been made for this habilwy.
Dunng the year the unfunded pension accrued as at April 2010 1n respect of the remaming
two directors was contributed by the Partnership to a separate plan managed by a third
party

From Apnl 2010, six directors no longer accrue pension benefits within the Partnership’s
pension funds and instead either receive a pension supplement, being a percentage of
salary, or contnbutions are made by the Partnership to the separate plan explained above
During the year ended 29 January 2011, the total pension supplement 1n heu of future
pension accrual and contributions made by the Partnership for all directors, was £1,637,000,
whuch mncludes £400,000 in respect of the Chairman

The annual pension entutlernents from the age of 60, accrued at the end of the year for
indmvidual directors, excluding the Chairman, who served on the Board dunng any part
of the year, and the prior year amounts for the same individuals, were as follows

2011 2010 2011 2010
£50,001 - £100,000 - - £150,001 - £200,000 2 2
£100,001 - £150,000 2 1 £200,001 - £250,000 - 1

The aggregate pension enttlement accrued at the end of the year for all directors,
excluding the Chairman, who served on the Board during any part of the year, and the prior
year amount for the same indmaduals, was £598,060 per annum (2010 £676,000 per
annum) The net decrease in accrued pension reflects the combined effect of the changes
to pension arrangements described above In addition, most of the directors are entitled to
temporary pensions payable from age 60 unul their State pension starts The amounts

of these temporary pensions are all less than the State pensions they expeci to receve

The aggregate entutlement to temporary pensions was £21,000 per annum (2010 £13,000
per annum) For those directors where there was an increase, the transfer value of the
aggregate increase in accrued enttlement, mcluding temporary pensions, duning the year
was £25,000

9 Employees

Dunng the year the average number of employees of the group, all of whom were employed
n the UK, was as follows

Consolidated 2011 2010
John Lewis 28,100 27,200
Waitrose 44,800 41,100
Other 1,900 1,700

74,800 70,000
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9 Employees (continued)

Employment and related costs were as follows

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salares 1,021.7 940 4
Social securty costs 820 752
Partnership bonus 174 2 1357
Employers' national insurance on Partnership bonus 20.3 156
Pension costs 1229 98 9
Long service leave cost 47 32
Total before partner discounts 14258 11,2690
Partner discounts (deducted from revenue) 44 6 300

1,4704 11,2990
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key
management compensation

Salaries and short-term benefits 10.6 99
Pension benefits 43 45
Termination benehts 07 03

All Partners engaged 1n the service of the Company are employees of the group No costs
or employee numbers are shown for the Company

Key management include directors of group compames, members of the group’s
management boards and officers of the group Key management compensation mcludes
salaries, national insurance costs, pension costs and the cost of other employment benefits,
such as company cars, private medical insurance and termination payments

Key management participate 1n the group’s long service leave scheme, which 1s open to all
employees and provides up to six months’ paid leave after 25 years’ service There 15 no
proporuonal entutlement for shorter periods of service It 1s not pracucal to allocate the cost
of accruing entutlement to this benefit to individuals, and so no allowance has been made
for this benefit in the amounts disclosed
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10 Intangible assets

Computer software

Internally Work i

Purchased developed progress Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 January 2009 309 106 2 292 166 3
Additions 24 54 254 332
Transfers 26 265 (29 1) -
Disposals - (36) - (36)
At 30 January 2010 359 1345 255 1959
Additions - - 435 435
Transfers 86 152 (23 8) -
Disposals 02 (0 5) - {07}
At 29 lanuary 2011 44.3 149.2 45.2 233.7
Aggregate amortisation
At 31 January 2009 193 619 - 812
Charge for the year 81 16 3 - 24 4
Disposals - 22) - 22)
At 30 January 2010 27 4 76 0 - 103 4
Charge for the year 46 154 - 240
Disposals oD - - 1)
At 29 January 2011 319 954 - 127 3
Net book value at 30 January 2010 85 585 255 9z 5
Net book value at 29 January 2011 124 538 45 2 1114

For the year to 29 January 2011 computer systerns totalhing £23 8m (2010 £29 1m) were
brought into use This covered a range of selling, support, admmstrauon and IT
infrastructure applications, with asset hives ranging from three to seven years

Amortisaton of intangible assets 15 charged within operatung expenses
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Assets tn

Land and  Fixtures and course of

buildings fithngs  construction Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 January 2009 2,904 5 1,358 4 142 7 4,405 6
Additions - 75 404 4 4119
Transfers 2977 159 9 (457 6) -
Disposals GRS} (36 7) - (42 7
At 30 January 2010 3,196 2 1,489 1 895 4,774 8
Additions - 06 448 6 449 2
Transfers 2037 1035 (307 2) -
Disposals (8 9) (18 2) - (27 1)
At 28 January 2011 3,3910 1,575 0 230.9 5,196 9
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 January 2009 446 3 7825 - 1,228 8
Charges for the year 713 1186 - 1899
Disposals - (34 9} - (34 9)
At 30 January 2010 517 6 866 2 - 1,383 8
Charges for the vear 723 143 2 - 2155
Disposals 77 (17 3) - (25 O}
At 29 January 2011 5822 992.1 - 1,574 3
Net book values at 30 January 2010 26786 6229 895 3,391 0
Net book values at 29 January 2011 2,808 8 582.9 230.9 3,622 6

Included above are land and buildings assets held under finance leases with a net book value

of £19 6m (2010 £20 2m)
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12 Investments

Subsidiary Cther

Shares in

Shares in Loan to John Lewis

John Lewis John Lews Partnership
ple plc  Trust Limited Total
Company £m £m £m £Em
At 30 January 2010 130 431 01 562
Movements - 14 0 - 140
At 29 January 2011 130 57.1 01 70 2

13 Inventones

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Raw matenals 51 49
Woaork in progress 08 o8
Finished goods and goods for resale 4161 3933

422.0 3990

The cost of inventory recogmised as an expense by the group in the penod was
£4,878 7m (2010 £4,460 4m) Prowisions against inventories of £1 0m were charged
(2010 £0 2m credited) 1n operating expenses

14 Trade and other recevables

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Amounts falling due within one year

Trade recervables 78 6 656
Other receivables 54 3 44 7
Prepayments 78.0 573
2109 167 6

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Prepayments 414 42 5

Trade receivables are non interest beaning and generally on credit terms of less than 90 days
Concentrauons of credit nsk are considered to be very hmited The carrying amount of
trade and other receivables approximates to fair value and 13 denominated 1n sterling
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14 Trade and other receivables (continued)

|
As of 29 January 2011, rade and other recewables of £1 O0m (2010 £0 8m) were impaired and |
fully pronided for Movements 1n the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows |

2011 2010

£m £m

At start of penod (0 8) (10
Charged to income statement (04) on
Uttlised - -
Released 02 03
At end of pericd (10) (0 8)

The creanon and release of the provision for impaired recervables have been included 1n
operating expenses 1n the income statement

As of 29 January 2011, trade and other receivables of £18 1m (2010 £15 1m) were past due I
but not impaired The ageing analysis of the past due amounts 1s as follows

2011 2010
£m £m
Up to 3 months past due 166 90
3 to 12 months past due 11 55
Over 12 months past due 04 06
181 151

15 Cash and cash equivalents
2011 2010
£m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 84 2 841
Short-term investments 4285 4759
5127 5600

For the year ended 29 January 2011, the effective interest rate on short-term investments
was 0 7% (2010 0 8%) and these deposits had an average maturity of 3 days (2010 2 days)

In the group cash flow statement, net cash and cash equivalents are shown after deductng
bank overdrafts, as follows

2011 2010

£m £m

Cash and cash eqguivalents, as above 5127 560 0
Less bank overdrafts (65 3) (115 &}
Net cash and cash equivalents 447 4 444 4

60




John Lewis Partnershup pfc annual report and accounts 2011

16 Analysis of financial assets

The currency and interest rate exposures of the group’s financral assets are as set out below
Short-term debtors are excluded from this analysis, on the basis that they are all non

mterest bearing and denominated 1n sterling

Non

Effective Floating nterest
interest rate beanng Total
Interest rate and currency analysis rate £m £m £m
Sterling 07% 5001 537 553 8
Euro 0 0% - - -
Other 01% 03 - 03
At 29 January 2011 500.4 537 554.1
Sterling 0 8% 542 6 539 596 5
Euro 0 0% 52 - 52
Other 0 0% 09 - 09
At 30 January 2010 548 7 539 602 6

Floatng rate assets are bank balances and short-term deposits at interest rates inked to LIBOR.
Non-nterest beanng balances include prepaid rent and cash floats, pnmanly held in the stores

17 Borrowings and overdrafts

2011 2010
Consohdated £m £m
Current
Bank overdraft 653 1156
Loans, 2011 1000 -
165.3 1156
Non-current
Loans, 2011 - 1000
63%4% Bonds, 2012 142 0 3000
Faw value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds 62 127
10%% Bonds, 2014 1000 1000
8%% Bonds, 2019 2750 2750
64% Bonds, 2025 3000 -
Unamortised bend transaction costs (6.3) {2 8)
5% Cumulative Preference Stock 37 37
7%% Cumulative Preference Stock 05 0bh
SIP Shares 535 397
874 6 8288
Company
Non-current
5% Cumulative Preference Stock 37 37
7%% Cumulative Preference Stock 05 05
SIP Shares 535 397
57.7 439
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17 Borrowings and overdrafts {continued)

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated 1n sterling, and are repayable on the dates
shown, at par

Unless the preference dividends are in arrears, the 5% and 7/4% Cumulative Preference
Shares only have vonng nghts in relation to a variation of their class nghts The amounts
recewvable 1n a windmg up would be himted to the amounts paid up, for the 5%
Cumulative Preference Shares, and to one and a half umes the amounts paid up for

the 7%% Cumulative Preference Shares

SIP shares are 1ssued as part of the BonusSave scheme The SIP shares that are allocated to
Partners are enutled to a diidend, the amount of which 1s determined from year to year by
the Partnership Board The amounts recervable in a winding up would be hmited to the
amounts that have been paid on the SIP shares

18 Trade and other payables

2011 2010
Consolidated £m Em
Current

Trade payables 424 5 358 2
QOther payables 96 6 800
Other taxation and social secunty 141 4 117 2
Accruals 167 5 1653
Deferred iIncome 258 28 3
Partnership bonus 1761 137 6
1,031.9 886 6

Non-current
Accruals 11 13
Deferred mncome 64 5 48 6
656 499

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to far value
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19 Finance lease liabilities

2011 2010
£m £m

The mintmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not later than one year 20 21
Later than one year but not more than five 74 83
More than five years 48.3 509
577 613
Future finance charge on finance leases (28 9) (32 1)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 288 292

Of which

Current 08 o7
Non-current 280 285

The group’s finance lease habilities relate 1o bwnldings that have been classified as finance
leases in accordance with IAS 17 Leases

20 Provisions

Long Service

service guarantee
leave costs Insurance Other Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 January 2010 801 48 2 175 390 184 8
Charged to income statement 94 205 79 349 706
Released to income statement - - - (59 (59)
Utilised (4 1) (16 1} (7 0) (26 5) (51 6)
At 29 January 2011 854 526 184 415 197.9

Of which

Current 277 17 4 43 356 850
Non-current 577 32 141 59 1129

The Partnership has a long service leave scheme, open to all employees, that provides up
to six months’ paid leave after 25 years’ service There 15 no proportional entitlement for
shorter periods of service The prowvision for the habihiies under the scheme 1s assessed on
an actuanal basis, reflecnng employees’ expected service profiles, and using economic
assumpnons consistent with those used for the group’s retirement benefit obhgations
(note 24), with the exception of the discount rate, where a rate appropriate to the shorter

duration of the long leave hability 1s used, so as to accrue the cost over employees’

service periods

Provisions for service guarantee costs reflect the group's expected hability for future repair
costs based on expected failure rates and unit repair costs for the classes of goods sold

Prowvisions for insurance claims are 1n respect of the group’s employer’s, pubhc and

vehicle third party hability insurances and extended warranty products Liabilines have

been assessed on an actuarial basis
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20 Provisions (continued)

Other provisions include reorganisation costs, accrued holiday pay, customer refunds and
property related costs

The exact tming of utilisanon of these provisions will vary according to the individual
circumstances However, the group’s best esimate of uuhsanon 1s pronnded above, and
in note 25,

21 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated 1n full on temporary differences under the Irability method
using a tax rate of 27% (2010 28%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Opening asset (41.9) (21 7)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (4.8) 21
Charged/(credited) to equity 141 4 (22 3)
Closing habihity/{asset) 94 7 (41 9)

The movements in deferred tax assets and hiabilines during the penod (prior to the offsetung
of balances within the same junisdiction, as permitted by IAS 12) are shown below

Deferred tax assets and habilites are only offset where there 15 a legally enforceable night
of offset and there 15 an mtenunon to settle the balances net

Capital gains Accelerated Revaluation

tax on land tax of land and Rollover

and buldings deprectation buildings gams Other Total
Deferred tax hiabihities £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 January 2009 02 169 3 63 241 12 2011
{Credited)/charged to income
statement (0 2) 114 04 {(07) 10 119
At 30 January 2010 - 1807 67 234 22 2130
Credited to income statement - (17) (18) {1 6) ()] (55
At 29 January 2011 - 179 0 4.9 218 18 2075

Capital gains Pensions
tax on land and Capital
and buildings provisions losses Total

Deferred tax assets £m £m £m £m
At 31 January 2009 - (222 8) - (222 8)
Credited to income statement 20 (77 on (9 8}
Credited to equity - (22 3) - {22 3)
At 30 January 2010 (20 (252 8) 01 (254 9)
(Credted)charged to income statement (@3 09 01 07
Charged to equity - 141 4 - 141 4
At 29 January 2011 (2.3) (110 5) - (112 8)
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21 Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed for tax losses carned forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future profits 1s probable There were no
unrecogrused deferred tax assets in respect of losses for the year ended 29 January 2011
(2010 £nil)

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the
current tax benefit obtained 1n the financial year ended 30 January 2016 following the
contributon of the limited partnership interest in JLP Scotush Lirmted Partnership to the
pension scheme (see note 24)

All of the deferred tax assets were available for offset agamnst deferred tax habiliues and hence
the net deferred tax habality at 29 January 2011 was £94 7m (2010 asset of £41 9m) The net
deferred tax hability s due after more than one year

22 Management of financial nsks

The principal financial risks to which the Parmership 1s exposed are liquidity nisk, mterest
rate nisk, foreign currency nisk, credit nsk, capital nsk and energy nsk These nsks are
managed as follows

Liquidaty risk

Liquidity requirements are managed in line wath short and long-term cash flow forecasts
and reviewed against the Partnership’s debt portfoho and matunty profile At the year end
the Partnership had undrawn committed revolving borrowings faciities of £310m (2010
£490m), £30m of which was available to August 2012, £40m to October 2012 and £240m
to September 2013 In addition to these facilines, the Partnership has bonds totalling
£817m, £142m of which mature in 2012, £100m 1n 2014, £275m 1n 2019 and £300m 1n
2025, together with a term loan of £100m maturing in March 2011 The bonds are not
subject to repricing, and their interest rates and maturity profiles are set out in note 25

In July 2010 the Partnership 1ssued a £300m bond repayable in 2025 and bought back
£158m of the bond due 1n 2012, reducing the average cost of borrowing, extending the
borrowing maturity and reducing the refinancing risk

The Partnership’s bank borrowing facihties each contain one financial covenant, based on
esther the level of tangible net worth or fixed charge cover The mimimum covenants that
apply are that tangible net worth shall be at least equal to financaal indebtedness and that
consolhidated EBITDAR shall not be less than 2 5 umes rent adjusted total net interest
costs Throughout the year the Partnership maintained comfortable headroom against
these covenants and 1s expected to do so into the foreseeable future

In March 2011, the term loan of £100m was extended to December 2012 and following
this agreement, the financial covenants on the Partnership’s bank borrowing facihties are
only based on fixed charge cover

The Partnership’s total commutted sources of funds at the date of signing these accounts
are £1,227m
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22 Management of financial nsks (continued)

The following analysis shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under
financial habhities and derivative assets and lirabilines at the balance sheet date

Due within  Due between Due 2 years
1 year 1 and 2 years and beyond

£m £m £m
Non-derivative financial iabilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease liabitities (100 0) (142 0) (675 0}
Interest payments on borrowings (61 1} (51 9) (392 2)
Finance lease liabilibes (19 (19 {53 3}
Trade and other payables (864 7) (11) -
Derivative financial llabilities
Denvative contracts — receipts 1123 - -
Denvative contracts ~ payments (106 0) - -
At 29 January 2011 (1,021.4) (196 9) (1,1205)
Non-dernvative financial habihties
Borrowings, excluding finance lease hiabilities - (100 0) (675 0)
Interest payments on bomrowings (53 5) (52 8) (205 3)
Finance lease liabilities 21 (2 1) (57 1)
Trade and other payables (741 1) (13) -
Dervative financial hiabihities
Denvative contracts — receipts 1137 96 -
Denvative contracts — payments (107 6) (19 -
At 30 lJanuary 2010 (790 6) (148 5) {937 4)

Interest on borrowings 1s calculated based on the borrowmg posinon at the financial year
end without taking account of future 1ssues Future floaung rate interest halines are
estimated using the forward interest rate curve as at the relevant year end date

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency
contracts 1s translated at spot rates prevailing at the year end

Interest rate risk

In order to manage the nisk of interest rate fluctuauons the Partnership targets a ratio of
fixed and floating rate debt in line with the Board approved treasury policy An analysis of
the Partnership’s financial habilities ts detailed 1n note 25 Exposures to 1nterest rate
fluctuations are managed using mterest rate swaps Interest rate swaps have been used to
convert £142 Om (2010 £150 Om) of fixed rate bond debt to floating rate These swaps
have a maturity and payment profile which matches the underlying 6 375% 2012 bond
and have been accounted for as fair value hedges under IAS 39 The movement 1n the far
value of the swaps and of the underlying hedged 1tem attributable to the hedged nisk 1s

£5 Tm

66




John Lewis Partnership plc annual report and accounts 2011

22 Management of financial nisks (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Partnership uses denvatives to manage exposures to movements In exchange rates
ansing from transactions with foreign suppliers Foreign currency exposures are hedged
primanly using forward foreign exchange contracts covering up to 100% of forecast
exposures on a rolling basis Forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge forecast
currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with fair value movements
recogmsed 1n equity Denvatives that were designated as cash flow hedges during the year
were fully effecuve At the balance sheet date, forward currency contracts of £103 1m
(2010 £105 7m) had been entered mnto to hedge purchases in foreign currencies which
will mature over the next 12 months At the year end £9 Om (2010 £B Om) of a total of
£9 Im (2010 £8 2m) of habihnhes denominated in foreign currency were covered in this
way

Credit risk

The Parmership has no significant exposure to customer credit risk Cash deposits and
other financial instruments give rise to credit risk on the amounts due from

counterpartles These risks are managed by restnct.lng such transactuons to counterpartles
with a credit raung not less than a Standard & Poor’s equivalent ‘A’ ratung

The Partnership considers its maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s as follows

2011 2010

£m £m

Trade and other receivables 1329 1103
Cash and cash equivalents 5127 560 0

645.6 670 3

Capital risk

The Partnershp’s objective 15 to maintamn a capital structure whaich s consisient wath an
mvestment grade credit rating Although the Partnership does not have a credit raung, 1t
monitors capital nsk using a number of capital ratos commonly used by raung agencies to
assess r1sk These rauos help the Board to establish levels of debt that the group should
not exceed, other than for retauvely short periods of hme

Energy nsk

The Partnership operates risk management processes for the group’s energy costs
associated with 11s acovities The Partnership’s energy policy 1s set out and reviewed by an
energy committee which meets regularly to review pricing exposure to electricity and gas
consumpuion and determines strategy for forward purchasing and hedging of energy costs

Sensitivity analysis
The following analysis illustrates the sensinvity of the Partnership’s financial instruments

to changes in marker variables, namely UK interest rates and the US dollar, euro and
Hong Kong dollar to sterhng exchange rates

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value
of pension and other postreurement obligations and provisions

The analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the rauo of
fixed to floatung rate borrowings and the proporuon of financial instruments n foreign
currencies are constant throughout the year, based on average balances and rates during
the year As a consequence, this sensitivity analysis 15 not representatuve of the financial
years n total
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22 Management of financial risks {continued)

The foltowing assumpuons have been made in calculaung the sensiuvity analysis

* the sensiavity of interest costs to movements mn mnterest rates 1s calculated on average
floating rate debt and investment balances prevathng during the financial year,

¢ changes in the carrying value of denvatives designated as fair value hedges ansing
from movements 1n interest rates are assumed to have no effect on net assets,

¢ changes in the carrying value of denivative financial instruments not 1n hedging
relatonships are assumed only to affect the income statement, and

* all denvauve instruments designated as hedges are assumed to be fully effecuve

2011 2010

Income Income
statement Equity statement Equity
+/- £m +/~ £m +/= £m +/—£m
UK interest rates +/- 5% 1.9 - 38 -
US dollar exchange rate +/- 15% 12 4.4 36 42
Euro exchange rate +/- 10% 0.5 54 04 54
Hong Kong dollar exchange rate +/- 15% 0.2 02 03 06

23 Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabihtes are held at amortised cost with the exceptuon of financial
derivauves which are held at fair value

Details of the Partnershup’s financial instruments, used to manage the financial nisks as
1dentified in note 22, are as follows

2011 2011 2010 2010

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fatr value of denivative financial instruments £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swap — far value hedge 70 - 127 -
Currency denvatives — cash flow hedge 16 10 09 24
86 10 136 24

The fair value of the financial instruments held by the Partnership are classified as level 2
under the IFRS 7 fair value hierarchy as all significant inputs to the valuauon model used
are based on observable market data
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23 Financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of the Parmership’s bonds and preference stock, which have been
determined by reference to market price quotations, are shown below For cash and other
financial habilities, book values approximate to fair value

2011 2010

£m £m

Bonds 8957 7713
Preference stock 35 33

24 Retirement benefit obligations

The prinaipal pension scheme operated by the Partnership 1s a defined benefit scheme,
providing benefits based on final pensionable pay The assets of this scheme are held
1n a separate, trustee admimnstered fund

The fund was last valued by an independent professionally qualified actuary as at

31 March 2010 using the projected unit method, which resulted mn a funding surplus of
£83m The market value of the assets of the fund as at 31 March 2010 was £2,341m The
actuanal valuation of these assets showed that they were sufficient to cover 104% of the

benefits which had accrued to members

The annual contnbution rate applicable for the year to 31 March 2011 1s 12 8% of gross
taxable pay of members, together with an addinonal £8 1m per year in respect of the past-
service defiait ansmng from the actuanal valuanon at 31 March 2007 The actuanes have
recommended a normal future annual contribution rate of 12 2% of gross taxable pay of
members from 1 Apnl 2011 onwards The next trienmial actuarial valuation of the fund
will take place as at 31 March 2013

As explained 1n note 8, there 1s also a senior pension scheme which provides additional
benefits to certain members of semor management The actuaries have recommended an
annual contnbution rate of £1 6m In addition, deficit reduction contmbutiens totalling
£6m were made 1n January and February 2011 to discharge the defiat in full

The contribuuons expected to be paid to the pension schemes during the year to
28 January 2012 amount to £104m

Pension commitments have been calculated based on the most recent actuanal valuauons,
as at 31 March 2010, which have been updated by the actuaries to assess the assets and
liabihities of the schemes as at 29 January 2011
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continued

24 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Scheme assets are stated at market values at 29 January 2011 The following financial
assumptons have been used

2011 2010
Future retatl price inflation 335% 325%
Future consumer pnce inflation 2.65% nfa
Discount rate 5 65% 5 70%
Expected return on assets 7 70% 7 80%
Increases in earnings 3 85% 375%
Increases tn pensions — In payment 315% 3 25%
Increases In pensions — deferred 2 65% 325%

The expected return on assets 15 a weighted average of the individual asset categories
and their expected rates of return, which are determined by consideration of historical
expenience and current market factors Increases in earmings are projected at 0 5% above
retail price inflanon, with increases 1n pensions in payment being 0 2% below retail price
inflavon, reflecung the impact of a cap on the level of pension increases, and increase i
deferred pensions being 1n line with consumer price inflation

The financial assumpuon which has the most significant effect on the valuauon of scheme
hiabilines and the current service cost 1s the real discount rate, 1 e the discount rate less
the rate of future retail price inflanon A movementn the real discount rate of 0 10%
would have the effect of increasing or decreasing the IAS 19 defined benefit obligation by
circa £50m, and would increase or decrease the current service cost by circa £2 9m

The post-reurement mortality assumptions used in valuing the pensions habilities were
based on the “S1 Light” series standard tables for all retirements, together wath medium
cohort improvement factors, and reflecung anticipated future improvements in mortahty
rates

The average life expectancies assumed were as follows

2011 2010
Men Women Men ‘Women
Average life expectancy (in years) for a 60-year-old 26.1 28 2 260 284
Average hfe expectancy (in years) at age 60,

for a 40-year-oid 273 297 273 295

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Amounts recognised n the balance sheet £m Em £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation for

funded arrangements (2,8690) (2,8240) (2,332Q) (2,3970) (2,2370)
Defined benefit obligation for

unfunded arrangements (11 0) 290 (18 O) (16 O) (14 0)

Total defined benefit obligation (2,880.00 {(2,8530) (2,3520) (2,4130) (2,2510)

Total value of assets 2,466 0 1,948 4 1,622 0 1,859 0 1,8100

Defined benefit hability at end of year {414 () (904 6) (730 ) (554 Q) (441 O)
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24 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Year ended Year ended
29 January 30 January

2011 2010
Amounts recognised in the income statement £m £m
Current service cost 120.0 967
Curtailment gain (24) -
Contribution expense* 35 09
Admimistrative costs 18 13
Qperating cost 1229 989
Interest cost on hiabiiities 1596 1596
Expected return on assets (162 1) {135 0)
Finance (income)/charge (2 5) 246
Total pension charge 1204 1235

* Includes Partnership contnbuunons to the defined contnbution scheme as well as
contributtons to a separate plan managed by a third party and pension supplements to
certain Partners i hieu of future pension accrual

Year ended Year ended
29 January 30 January

2011 2010
Amounts recognised tn equity £m £m
Actuanal (gains)/losses on assets {179 2) (164 7)
Actuanal (gains)/losses on defined benefit obligation {159 5) 3251
Total (gains)/losses recogmsed in equity (3387) 160 4
Cumulative loss recognised in equity 2308 569 5

2011 2010
Reconciliation of defined benefit hability £m £m
Defined benefit lrability at beginning of year (904 6) (730 0}
Pension expense {115.1) (121 3)
Contributions 267.0 107 1
Total gains/(losses) recogmsed in equity 338.7 (160 4}
Defined benefit iability at end of year {414 0) (904 6)
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24 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

2011 2010

Reconciliation of defined benefit obhgation £m £m
Defined benefit cbligation at the beginming of year 2,853 0 2,352 0
Current service cost 120 0 96 7
Curtaiiment gam 24) -
Interest on penston habilities 159 6 1596
Actuanal (gains)fosses (159 5) 3251
Benefits paid {90 7) (80 4)
Defined benefit obhigation at the end of year 2,8800 2,853 0
2011 2010

Reconciliation of value of assets £m £m
Value of assets at the beginmung of year 1,948.4 1,622 0
Expected return on assets 162.1 1350
Actuanal gains 179.2 164 7
Benefits paid (90.7) (80 4)
Contnbutions 267.0 107 1
Value of assets at the end of year 2,466.0 1,948 4
2011 2011 2010 2010

Analysis of assets % £m % £m
Equities 74 1,818 1 71 1,392 3
Bonds 13 3249 14 263 9
Properties 8 193 8 8 1495
Other 5 129 2 7 1427
2,466 0 1,948 4

2011 2010

Actual return on assets £m £m
Expected return on assets 162.1 1350
Actuanal gains 179.2 164 7
Actual return on assets 3413 2997
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24 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
History of expenence of gains and losses £m £m £m £m £m
{Gains)flosses on assets (179 2) (164 7) 5145 1103 {43 7)
% of assets at the end of the year 7% 8% 32% 6% 2%
Experence (gains)/losses on defined
benefit obhgation (106 5) (28 0} (17 4} 60 6 15
% of defined benefit cbligation at the
end of the penod 4% 1% 1% 3% 0%

Contnbutions will be as follows until the next actuanal valuaton due as at 31 March 2013

The John Lewis Partnership Trust for Penstons — 12 8% of scheme members’ gross taxable pay
(excluding Parmership bonus), together with £8 Im per year in respect of the pastservice deficit,
untd 31 March 2011 From 1 Aprd 2011 the contribunon rate will be 12 2% of scheme members’
gross taxable pay (excluding Parmership bonus) and no deficit reductton contmbunons are
required as the scheme 15 1n surplus on a funding basis

For the John Lewss Parmership Semor Pension Scheme — £1 6m, or such other amount as
cernfied by the scheme actuary based upon an analysis of the membership data at the start of the
scheme year

On 30 January 2010 the Partnership entered mnto an arrangement with the Pension Scheme
Trustees to address an element of the scherme defiat that existed at that ume

The Partnership estabhshed two partnershaps, JLP Scotnsh Limited Partnerstup and JLP Scottsh
Partmership, which are both consolidated within these Partnership financal statements

Together with another Partnership company, JLP Scottish Limited Parmership provided
sufficient capital to JLP Scotnsh Parmership to enable 1t to procure property assets with a market
value of £150 9m from other Partnership companies The Partnership retans control over
these properties, mcluding the flexibihty to substitute alternative properties The Propertes held
m JLP Scotush Parmership have been leased back to John Lewas plc and Waitrose Lumited

As a partner 1n JLP Scotush Lirmted Parmership, the pension scheme is entutled to an annual
share of the profits of the JLP Scotash Limited Partnersinp each year over 21 years At the end of
this period, the partnership capatal allocated to the pension scheme will be reassessed,
depending on the funding posizon of the pension scheme at that tme, with a potental value in
the range £0 5m to £09 bm At that point, the Partnership may be required to transfer thus
amount m cash to the scheme

Under IAS 19, the investment held by the pension scheme 1n JLP Scotush Limited Partmerstup, a
consolidated enuty, does not represent a plan asset for the purpose of the Partnership’s
consoldated accounts Accordingly, the pension deficit posinon presented n these consolidated
accounts does not reflect the £98m (2010 £95m) investment in JLP Scotush Linuted Partnership
held by the pension scheme The dismibunon of JLP Scotush Limited Partnership profits to the
penston scheme 15 reflected as pension contmbutons in these conschdated accounts on a cash
basts
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25 Analysis of financial habilities

The currency and interest rate exposure of the group’s financial habhues, after taking
account of £142m (2010 £150m) of swaps from fixed rate to floaung rate, s as set out

below Shortterm payables are excluded from this analysis

Non
Fixed Floating interest
rate rate beanng Total
Interest rate and currency analysis £m £m £m £m
All sterling
At 29 January 2011 707 9 3608 1979 1,266 6
At 30 January 2010 568 3 405 3 184 8 1,158 4
2011 2011 2010 2010
Effective Effective
Matunty of financial hiabihties interest rate £m interest rate £m
Repayable within one year
Bank overdrafts 17% 65 3 17% 1156
Provisions 85.0 685
Property finance leases 7.6% 08 76% a7
Loans 09% 1000 - -
2511 184 8
Repayable between one and two years
Provisions 286 379
Property finance leases 7 6% o8 7 6% o8
Loans - 12% 100 0
Bonds 6 4% 142.0 - -
Unamortised bond transaction costs (0.2) -
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds 62 -
1774 1387
Repayable between two and five years
Prowisions 357 421
Property finance leases 7.6% 25 7 6% 24
Bonds 10.5% 1000 7 4% 4000
Unamortised bond transaction costs - (06)
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds - 127
1382 156 6
Repayable in more than five years
Provisions 48 6 363
Property finance leases 7 6% 24.7 7 6% 253
Bonds 72% 5750 8 4% 2750
Unamortised bond transaction costs (61) 22
Preference stock 5 3% 42 53% 42
SIP shares 2 5% 535 30% 397
699.9 3783
1,266 6 1,158 4
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26 Share capital

2011 2011 2010 2010
Issued and Issued and
Authorised fully paid Authonsed fully paid
£m £m £m Em
Equity

Deferred Ordinary Shares
612,000 of £1 each 06 06 06 06
06 06 06 06

The Deferred Ordimary Shares rank 1n all respects as equuty shares except that each share

has 1,000 votes 1n a vote taken on a poll

The Deferred Ordinary Shares are held by John Lewis Partnershup Trust Limited, with

whom ulumate control rests

27 Reconcihation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

Year to Year to
29 Jangary 30 January
2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Profit before tax 173 4 155 3
Amortisation of intangible assets 240 24 4
Depreciation 215.5 1899
Net finance costs 63.1 831
Partnership bonus provision 1945 151 3
(Profit)/loss on disposal of tangible and intangible assets (10} 21
Increase 1n Inventories (23.0) (46 7}
Increase in recewables (42.5) (24 2)
Increase 1N payables 1321 1181
Increasef(decrease} In retirement benefit obhigations 06 (10 4)
Increase in provisions 84 47
Cash generated from operations 7451 647 6
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28 Analysis of net debt

Other
30 January non-cash 29 Januvary
2010 Cash flow movements 2011
£m £m £m £m
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 560 0 (47 3) - 5127
Denvative financial
instruments 136 - (50) 86
5736 (47 3) (50) 6213
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts {1156} 503 (100 O) {165 3)
Finance ieases on D4 (095 {0 8)
Denvative financial instruments (2 4) - 14 {1 0)
(118 7 507 (99 1) (167 1)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings (818 9) (155 8) 1000 (874 7}
Unamertised bond transaction costs 28 42 {07) 63
Fair value adjustment for
hedged nsk on bonds (127 - 65 {62}
Finance leases (28 5) - 05 (28 0)
(857 3) (151 &) 106 3 (902 6)
Total net debt (402 4) (148 2) 22 (548 4)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to net debt
Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Increase in cash in the year 3.0 3226
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing (151 2} (283 6)
Movement in debt for the year (148 2) 390
Opening net debt (402 4) (432 4)
Non-cash movements 22 {=X4)]
Closing net debt (548 4) (402 4)
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29 Commitments

At 29 January 2011 contracts had been entered into for future capual expenditure
of £63 6m (2010 £32 8m)

John Lewss plc continues to provide lease guarantees in favour of the group’s former
associate company, Ocado Limited, of £6 8m (2010 £6 8m)

30 Operating lease commitments

2011 2011 2010 2010
Future aggregate mimimum lease Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
payments under non-cancellable buildings machinery buitdings machinery
operating leases, payable £m Em £Em £m
Within one year 104 7 - 893 01
Later than one year and less than five years 394.0 - 344 2 -
After five years 1,686 5 - 1,572 3 -
Future aggregate mimtmum lease 2011 2010
payments under non-cancellable Land and Land and
operating leases, payable after buildings bulldings
five years compnse the following: £m £m
Later than five years and less than ten years 408 2 3522
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 5276 479 8
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 2324 2199
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 229 2 2200
After eighty years 289.1 300 4
1,686 5 1,572 3

Total future sub-lease payments receivable relating to the above operating leases
amounted to £16 Om (2010 £17 1m)

31 Related party transactions

The group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January
2010 to address an element of the scheme defictt that existed at that ume Details of this
arrangement are set out in note 24

Key management compensauon has been disclosed 1n note 8
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32 Post balance sheet events

On 7 March 2011 the group launched a retail bond, a five year investment product
offering a fixed annual return of 4 5% 1n cash and a further 2% in John Lewis Partnership
gift vouchers The retail bond 1ssue closed on 18 March 2011 after reaching 1ts investment
target of £50m, and was 1ssued on 6 Apnl 2011

33 Subsidiary and associated undertakings

Principal subsidiary undertakings as at 29 January 2011 were as follows

John Lewis plc (Department store retarling, corporate, and shared services)
Ordinary shares — 100%

5% First Cumulative Preference Stock — 83 3%

7% Cumulatve Preference Stock — 75 6%

Subsidiary undertakings of John Lewis ple:

Herbert Parkinson Limited (Weaving and making up)

JLP Holdings BV (Inuvestment holding company, incorporated tn Holland,
subsidrary of JLP Victona Lumted)

JLP Insurance Lumuted (Insurance, tmcorporated and operating mn Guernsey)
JLP Victoria Limited {fnvestment holding company)

John Lewrs Car Finance Limited (Car finance)

John Lewts Properties plc (Property holding company)

Waitrese Limited (Food retailing)

Waitrose (Jersey) Limited (Food retailing, incorporated and operating in Jersey)
Waitrose (Guernsey) Limited (Food retailing, incorporated and operating in Guernsey)
JLP Scotush Partership (Tnvestment holding undertaking)

JLP Scottush Limited Partnershup (Truvestment holding undertaking)

The whole of the ordmary share capital of the subsidiary undertakings of John Lewis plc s
held within the group The hst excludes non-trading substdiary undertakings which have
no matenal effect on the accounts of the group Except as noted above, all of these
subsidiary undertakings operate wholly or mainly in the Umited Kingdom and are
registered 1n England and Wales or Scotland

The group has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has therefore not appended the accounts of
JLP Scotush Partnership and JLP Scotush Limited Partnership to these accounts Separate
accounts for these partnerships are not required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
Jor the annual report and the
Jfinancial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financaal statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors have prepared the group and parent company financial statements
1n accordance with International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satsfied that they give a rue and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
the company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period In prepanng these financial
statements, the directors are required to

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
- make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent, and

— state whether apphcable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explaimned in the financal statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficaent to
show and explain the company’s transacuons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial positon of the company and the group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulaton They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detecuon of fraud and other wrregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the company’s website
Legislanon in the United Kingdom governming the preparation and dissemination of financal
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and funcuons are listed 1n the directors and adwvisers section
of the annual report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

— the group finanaal statements, which have been prepared m accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, habliues, financial posinon and
profit of the group, and

- the business review includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the group, together with a descnipuon of the principal nisks and
uncertainties that it faces

By order of the Board

Charlie Mayfield
Marisa Cassoni

Directors
7 Apnl 2011
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of
John Leuwis Partnership plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) of John Lews Partnership plc for the year ended 29 January 2011 which compnse
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income/ (expense), the consohdated balance sheet, the balance sheet of the company, the
consolidated and company statements of changes 1n equity, the statement of consolidated cash
flows and the related notes The financal reporung framework that has been apphed in thewr
preparation 1s applicable law and Internatonal Fimancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as
apphied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

Respecuve responsibilities of directors and audrtors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 79, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being sausfied
that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements 1 accordance with applhicable law and Internauonal Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiung Pracuces Board'’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opintons, has been prepared for and only for the company's
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose We do not, in giving these opirmons, accept or assume responsimhty for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or 1nto whose hands 1t may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wriung

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstaterent, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company's circumstances
and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting esumates made by the directors, and the overall presentaton of the financial
statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the
parent company’s affairs as at 29 January 2011 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended,

— the group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union,

— the parent company finanaal statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as apphed in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006, and

~ the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Arucle 4 of the 1AS
Regulanon

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our ¢pimon the informanon given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of
John Leuwts Partnership plc

continued

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

— adequate accounung records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company financal statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not recewed all the information and explanauons we require for our audit

Rosemary ;aplmd (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 April 2011
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Retail branches

John Lews Stores

London

Southern England

Midlands, East Anglha,
Northern England, Wales and Scotland

John Lews, Oxford Street
John Lews, Brent Cross
Peter Jones, Sloane Square

John Lewis Kingston

John Lewis at home, Croydon

John Lews, Bluewater

John Lews, Cribbs Causeway
John Lews, High Wycombe
John Lews, Milton Keynes
John Lewss, Reading

John Lews, Southampton
John Lews, Watford

John Lewis, Welwyn

Knight & Lee, Southsea
John Lews at home, Poole
John Lews at home, Swindon

John Lewis, Aberdeen
John Lewis, Cambndge
John Lews, Carduff
John Lews, Cheadle
John Lews, Edinburgh
John Lews, Glasgow
John Lews, Leicester
John Lews, Liverpool

John Lews at home, Tunbridge Wells
Waitrose Supermarkets and Stores

John Lews, Newcastle
John Lewis, Norwich
John Lews, Notungham
John Lewss, Peterborough
John Lewns, Sheffield
John Lewss, Sohhull

John Lews, Trafford

London

Balham Bromley East Sheen Hornchurch Putney Surbiton
Banstead Bromley South Edgware Road Ishington Raynes Park Swiss Coutage
Barbican Canary Wharf Enfield Kensington Richmond Temple Fortune
Barnet Cheam Finchley Kingston Ruiship Twickenham
Bayswater Chelsea Fulham Marylebone Sanderstead Wandsworth
Beckenham Chuswick Gloucester Road Mull Hill South Harrow ‘West Faling
Belgravia Clapham Green Street Green New Malden South Woodford Westfield
Bloomsbury Clerkenwell Harrow Weald Old Brompton Staines Whetstone
Brent Cross Crouch End Holloway Road Palmers Green St Kathanne Docks ~ Worcester Park
Southern England

Abingdon Cheltenham Fleet Lewes Romsey Upminster
Allington Park Chesham Frimley Longfield Salisbury Wallingford
Amersham Chichester Gillingham Lymington Saltash ‘Walton on Thames
Ampill Christchurch Godalming Madenhead Sandhurst ‘Wantage
Andover Cirencester Goldswerth Park Marlborough Sevenoaks Waterlooville
Ashford Cobham Gosport Marlow Sidmouth ‘Wellington

Bath Coulsdon Hailsham Melksham Southampton Welwyn Garden Caty
Beaconsfield Crewkerne Harpenden Milton Keynes Southend Westbury Park
Berkhamsted Crowborough Haslemere Nailsea Southsea West Byfleet
Biggin Hill Croydon Havant Newbury St Albans Weybntdge
Billericay Dartford Headington Northwood Stevenage Wimborne
Bishop s Stortford Dnbden Henley Okehampton Stornmgton Winchester
Brackley Dorchester Hersham Oxted Stroud Windsor
Bndport Dorking Hertford Paddock Wood Sunningdale Winton
Brighton Eastbourne Hitehan Parkstone Tenterden Witney
Buckhurst Hill East Cowes Holsworthy Petersfield Thame Wokingham
Buckingham East Grinstead Horley Porushead Thatcham Woodley
Burgess Hill Enfield Chase Horsham Ramsgate Tonbnidge Worthing
Caterham Epsom Hythe Reading Torquay Yateley
Caversham Esher Lesgh on Sea Rickmansworth Towcester

Chandters Ford Farnham Lewghton Buzzard Ringwood Twylord

Midlands, East Angha, Wales, Northern England and Scotland

Abergavenny Chifton Harrogate Morningside Poynton Sutron Coldfield
Alcester Colchester Hexham Newcastle Rushden Swaftham
Almncham Comely Bank Hunungdon Newark Saffron Walden Weston Super Mare
Ashbourne Daventry Kenitworth Newmarket Sandbach Willerby

Barry Drowwich Kingsthorpe Newpaort Saxmundham Wilmslow

Blaby Ely Leeds, The Core Norwich Sheffield Wolverhampton
Bury 5t Edmunds Fuzroy Street Lichfield Notungham Spinningfields ‘Wymondham
Buxton Formby Linceln Oadby Stamford York

Byres Road Four Oaks Lutterworth Ouey St Ives

Caldscot Great Malvern Meanwood Peterborough S5t Neots

Cambndge Hall Green Mena Brdge Ponteland Stourbridge

Cheadle Huime Harborne Monmouth Pentprennau Sudbury

Channel Islands

Admiral Park Rohais St Heher St Saviour

In addiuon to the shops listed above, the Partmership operates the following businesses

John Lews Dwrect fnternet reten!

Waitrose Direct Internet retarl, mail order and wholesale including export

Herbert Parkinson, Darwen Weaving and making up
Leckford Estate, Stockbndge Farming
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Notice of AGM

Notice 1s hereby given that the eighty-second annual general meeung of the company will be
held at 12 35pm on 27 May 2011 at Partnership House, Carhsle Place, London, SW1P 1BX

— To recewve the directors’ report and accounts for the year 2010/11

—To consider the re-elecuon of directors

— To consider the re-appomtment of the auditors

— To consider the remunerauon of the auditors

- To consider the following, which will be proposed as an Ordinary Resolution,
That pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,

{a) The Company be and 1s hereby authorised to purchase by way of market purchase
on a recognised stock exchange,

(1) up to 3,696,995 1n nominal amount of 5 per cent Cumulatuve Preference Stock (‘the
5 per cent Stock’) 1n the Company at a minmum price of 60p and a maximum price
of £1 nominal of the 5 per cent Stock, and

(un) up to £500,000 in nominal amount of 7} per cent Cumulative Preference Stock (‘the
73 per cent Stock’) 1n the Company at a minumum price of 80p and a maximum price
of 125p per £1 nomunal of the 7} per cent Stock, and

(b) thas authonty shall expire on the earher of the close of the annual general meeung of the
Company to be held in 2012 or 26 August 2012

By Order of the Board

Margaret Casely-Hayford

Company Secretary

171 Victona Street, London SWI1E 5NN
7 Apnl 2011

The report and accounts are sent to all members, but only the members holding Deferred
Ordinary Shares are enttled to attend and vote at this meeung

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting 1s entitled to appoint one or more proxes
to attend and vote mstead of him A proxy need not be a member
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